GRAND RABIDS-KENT COUNTY

i

CONVENTION ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT. CONVENTION, SHOW & SPORTS FACILITIES

Meeting of Board of Directors

Wednesday, May 28, 2003
7:30 a.m. — 9:30 a.m.
County Administration Building Board Room, 3" Floor
Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503

AGENDA
Convention L Call to Order
:“::c' . I1. Approval of April 23, 2003 Minutes Action
III.  Presentation — Big Daddy’s Doo Wop Sh’Bop Review Information
John Logie, Leann Arkema, Rich MacKeigan, Casey Wondergem
Chairman
Lew Chamberlin IV. DeVos Place Construction Update — Erhardt/Hunt Information
Clif Charles
David Frey V. Presentation and Approval of Fiscal Year 2004 Action
Steven Heacock Operatmg BUdgetS
Birgit Klohs 1. SMG - Chris Machuta
Joseph Tomaselli . i, CAA — Robert White
V1. Committee Reports
a. Building Committee Information
b. Operations Committee Information
- CVBUpdate
c. Finance Committee
i. Approval of Disbursements Action
ii. Approval of SMG April 2003 Financial Reports Action
iii.  Approval of CAA April Financial Report Action
iv. Approval of Additional Directors & Officers Action
Liability Insurance Coverage
V. Heartside District Parking Study Request Action
VIL. Resolution Approving and Authorizing the Execution of Action

DeVos Place Logo Agreement with Hinon McKendry, Inc.

Van Andel Arena

130 Fulton West Grand Center

Grand Rapids, MI 49503 Grui‘c‘isRﬁA:ir:iroeMAlvji?sNové
S,

Fax 616.742.6197 ‘ 2}2-;4%6600

ax .742.6590

{< >




VIIIL

IX.

SMG Report
- Facilities Calendar

Other Business

Public Comment

Adjournment

Information



Item II

MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, April 23, 2003

L Call to Order

Chairman John Logie called the meeting to order at 7:35 a.m. Chairman Logie presided and
Susan Waddell recorded in the absence of Secretary/Treasurer Birgit Klohs. Mayor Logie stated
that Attorney Wendt would present a proposed Memorandum of Understanding as an additional
agenda item under the Finance Committee report. Mayor Logie will ask for a motion to suspend

the rules.

Attendance

Members Present: John Logie, Chairman
Lew Chamberlin
David Frey
Steve Heacock
Joseph Tomaselli

Members Absent: Clif Charles
Birgit Klohs

Staff/Others: David Czurak Grand Rapids Business Journal
Daryl Delabbio Kent County
Robert DuHadway DK Security
Kurt Kimball City of Grand Rapids
Chris Knape The Grand Rapids Press
Chris Machuta SMG
Rich MacKeigan SMG
Steve Miller SMG
Bill Sewall Erhardt/Hunt Joint Venture
Dale Sommers CAA Owner Representative
Al Vanderberg Kent County
Susan Waddell CAA
Jana Wallace City of Grand Rapids
Jim Watt SMG
Richard Wendt Dickinson Wright
Robert White Kent County
Steve Wilson CVB
Tim Wondergem Wondergem Consulting

IL Minutes of Prior Meetings

Motion: M. Frey, supported by Mr. Tomaselli, moved to approve the Minutes of the March 26, 2003,
meetings of the Authority. Motion carried unanimously.

Il DeVos Place Construction Update

Mr. Sewall reported that just six months remain until the grand opening of the exhibit hall. The
construction manager is coordinating with the Amway Grand Plaza Hotel to modify public access in
preparation for the Welsh Auditorium demolition. Major activities at the Grand Gallery include
completion of drywall finishing, painting, and ceiling grid installation in the meeting rooms. The acoustic



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
April 23,2003 -2

wall panel installation is underway. Operable partitions have been installed on two levels of the meeting
rooms. The painting subcontractor continues to paint offices, corridors, stairwells, communication
closets, and bulkheads on all levels. Installation of the HVAC systems that serve most of the Grand
Gallery is nearly complete, along with the framing and hanging of most restroom areas. The concrete
subcontractor has completed the Exhibit Hall floor and is working on the truck dock area slab on grade.
The mechanical subcontractor has set cooling towers, chillers, and is setting air handling units that serve
the Exhibit Hall. Enclosure of the Exhibit Box is complete on the East and West sides. The North
elevation is approximately 80% enclosed. Roofing and brick at the dock have begun. Phase 3 work that
has been awarded to date is compliant with the overall project budget. Asbestos abatement continues at
the Welsh Auditorium and is progressing well.

Iv. Committee Reports
Building Committee

Mr. Frey stated that the Committee received a presentation from the City of Grand Rapids Fireworks Task
Force. The Task Force prepared a thorough report, which is available for review. Mr. Sommers
presented a current financial report. The Phase 1 and 2 guaranteed maximum price of $118,054,870
included a contractor’s contingency of $3.9 million and an owner’s contingency of $1 million. The
contractor’s contingency is now $3.9 and the owner’s contingency is now $890,000. The Phase 3
estimate of $51,388,350 includes an owner’s contingency of $2,010,475. The owner’s contingency has
grown due to the bid results of the Phase 3 electrical.

Operations Committee

Mr. Chamberlin reported that the Committee did not meet in April

Mr. Wilson reported that prospective clients are touring the new building weekly. Gordon Food Service
will be taking a hard-hat tour next week. The CVB is working with Gordon Food Service to schedule
conventions for 2004-2006. Although the CVB has confirmed a dates for the Michigan Landscape
Nursery Association, representatives will be in town May 5 for a site inspection because they are so
excited to see the building. MTA representatives will be in town on June 6. MTA usually meets in
Detroit, and the CVB is working with MTA on a contract for 2006-2008. A July FAM tour for national
meeting planners has been scheduled in conjunction with the Muskegon Tall Ships event. The customer
service task force is developing a curriculum, which should be completed by May or June.

Finance Committee
Mr. Heacock presented the Finance Committee report.
a. Approval of Disbursements and Payroll for the Period March 21 — April 14, 2003

Motion: Mr. Heacock, supported by Mr. Frey, moved to approve payment of disbursements and payroll
totaling 38 646,395.49. Motion carried unanimously.

b. Approval of SMG Financial Statements for the Grand Center and Van Andel Arena

Motion: Mr. Heacock, supported by Mr. Frey, moved to approve the SMG Financial Statements for the
Van Andel Arena and Grand Center for the period ended March 31, 2003. Motion carried unanimously.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
April 23,2003 -3

c. Approval of CAA Preliminary Financial Statements Prepared by Beene Garter LLP

Motion: Mr. Heacock, supported by Mr. Frey, moved to approve the Grand Rapids — Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2003. Motion carried
unanimously.

d. Approval of Directors & Officers Liability Insurance Renewal

Mr. Heacock recommended approval of the directors and officers liability insurance renewal. The current
policy expires April 25, 2003. Although staff requested quotes from several companies, only Federal
Insurance Company responded. The renewal limit is $7,000,000 with a $15,000 deductible and premium
of $17,600, a 14% increase. The renewal proposal is $2,514/81 million and the expiring is $2,200/$1
million.

Motion: Mr. Heacock, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to approve the Directors and Officers
liability insurance renewal proposal with Federal Insurance Company. Motion carried unanimously.

e. Approval of Memorandum of Understanding Between
Convention/Arena Authority and Grand Action Committee

Motion: Mr. Heacock, supported by Mr. Frey, moved to suspend the rules. Motion carried unanimously.

Attorney Wendt recommended approval of a Memorandum of Understanding between the
Convention/Arena Authority and Grand Action with respect to the $33,000,000 Grand Action
contribution to assist with financing the cost of the new convention center. Mr. Wendt explained that
approximately $2 million represents in-kind donations from Grand Action, The Grand Rapids Press,
Steelcase, Bay Area Interiors, and S.A. Mormon

Motion: Mr. Heacock, supported by Mr. Tomaselli, moved to approve the Memorandum of
Understanding between the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority and Grand Action
Committee. Abstain: Mr. Frey. Motion carried.

Mayor Logie noted the extraordinary significance of public-private partnerships and acknowledged David
Frey and John Canepa for their visions of a new convention center. Mayor Logie acknowledged Steve
Heacock for his leadership.

V. SMG Report

Facilities Calendar

Mr. MacKeigan reported that activity at the Van Andel Arena is heating up. Griffins will host two
playoff games next Monday and Tuesday. The Heart Ball is next Friday followed by GVSU
commencement on Saturday. On Sunday the Zeeland Classis Church will hold two services, with
attendance expected to exceed 10,000. Upcoming concerts include Brooks & Dunn, Red Hot Chili
Peppers, Big Daddy’s Doo Wop Sh’Bop, Tim McGraw, Ringo Starr, Fleetwood Mac, and the Mormon
Tabernacle Choir. The Grand Center continues to be busy despite construction. The opera is moving in
this weekend for the Marriage of Figaro.

VI.  Other Business

The fiscal year 2003-2004 budgets will be on the May agenda.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
April 23,2003 - 4

VII. Public Comments
None.

VII. Adjournment

There being no other business, the meeting adjourned at 8:15 a.m.

Susan M. Waddell, Recording Secretary



VAN ANDEL

GRAND RAPIDS

VAN ANDEL ARENA

OPERATING BUDGET
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2004

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Bob Johnson

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity

Item V.i.



(620'0%) 109°'205'} z25'e9r'L 1S6'ST 926'cz 091'28 L12'v0E 685'€St 9LL'vpL z2£'201 ¥6.'0LL Liz'velL 109'94 1 109'8L1 v.i6'c8
(689'LLL) €2€'90}' z90'8.2'c  S6L'TLZ 16L'2L2 leL'ere 161'2L2 L62'LL2 6L'212 l6L'C2L2 161'212 l6L°2L2 6L°2L2 l6L'2L2 l6l'cLe
(595°c2) 9e2'652'1 108'zee’tL SL0'LLL 990'LLL 990°LLL 990'LL1L 990'LLL 990'LLL 990'LLL 990'L11 990°LLL 990°LEL 930°LLL 990°'LLE
(eer'e) loL'ee ovL'9e £00'c €0t €lo'e cLo'e €lLo'e €10'c €10'e €10t €Lo'e €L0'e £L0'e €10'e
sol'e 169'121 266'LLL ove's ze8's zee's zes’'s 2e8's zee's zee’s 2ee8’s ze8's ze8's zee's 2€8'6
(s19) syL'ell =18 49 228’6 1£5'6 L€S'6 1€S'6 1£5'6 LEs's LES'6 1€5'6 1€5'6 1€5'6 LE€S'6 L£S'6
(co8'Lp) 8lo'sEL’L 1Zr'LLL') ZLi'ee 6L1'86 61186 6L1'86 6L1'86 611'86 6LL'86 6L1'86 6L1°86 6L1'86 61186 611'86
(z96'p1) Lev'e6l €51'802 el 9vZ'LL ove'LL ave'lL oavL'8lL ovZ'LL ave'LL 9vz'LlL ave'LlL 9ve'llL ove'LL ove'Ll
(eeZ'st) ¥86'v¥L 12Z'061 S2L'S)L zeL'st zeL'st geL'st (A AN zeL'SH ZEL'SL zeL'st zeL'st ZEL'SE zeL's) zeL'sl
€82'¢ 268’0l 609'001 LLe'e 852’8 8se's 852’8 85.'6 8sz'8 8s2'8 8se's 8sz'e 8s2's 852’8 8sc's
0L9'LEL v.6'609'v  v8S'LYL'Y  251'86Z €2.'562 156'65¢ 800°2LS 988'0¢cY €26'9LY 6LL'SLE 165'ery 800'20¥ 86€'68€ 86€'L6€ L22'SS€
$S5'v9 ovr'0s8’L 000°'5L6'L 945°651 +85'651 ¥85'651 ¥85'6S1 ¥85'651 ¥85'6S1 ¥85'651 ¥85'651 $85'651 ¥85'6S1 $85'651 $85'651
000'06 000°06 00S'Z 00S°2 00S'L 00S'Z 005°2 005°2 00S°Z 00S'Z 00S'Z 00S'Z 00S'2 00S'Z
000'5¥2 000's¥2 R 44 Liv'oe L1102 Liv'oe Liv'oz Liv'oT Liv'oz LL¥'0z L1p'02 Liv'0z Liv'oe L1¥y'0Z
000'06 000'06 00s°2 0052 005°L 0052 00S°2 00s'Z 00s'Z 0052 00s°'2 00s'2 00s'2 00S°L
000's2S 000°52S osl'ey 0sl'ey 0si'ey 0SL'ey osL'ed 0SL'eY 0S.'ey 0sL'ey os'ey 0S.'ey 0sL'ey 0S.'eV
000'596 000'596 civ'os Liv'o8 LIv'08 Ziy'o8 JAR A ] L1¥°08 Liv'08 Li¥'08 L1v'08 LLv'os Liv'os LL¥'08
950°29 8256542 $85'928'  9LlL'6EL 6EL'9EL €1£'002 vey'LLy 20e'LLZ 68€'252 SE5'5E2 L00'¥82 vey'Lve vi8'622 pig'Lee £81'961
666'L21 £90'69%'} Z90'16S'L 006°09 6.0's. vie'vil $88'9v2 ¥vs'Z9L 058°991L L8L'vEL ZLy'lsl 08.'/2) 00s'8€lL 29Z'0Li 0SE'L6
o1eey oLezy - - z62'9 206'6 9vs'e 06€'S 029'v 080°¢ oLL'e 0LL - -
165252 165'25¢ 008'9)L 08e'9L 008'stL vie'Le vrv've L0E'pL 008'9L 088'92 zIL'ez oov's 00s'Le 002's
98.'68 98.'68 00L'z 669'L cel'iL £56'6 66€'L ¥LS'L 92'L Zs5¥'L 8st's 054'6L 29l'e osi'e
§/€'902'} G/g'902'L 000°2y 000°LS 00564 §59'G61 ssL'ozl 685°'6E1L 000°s04 000°'0Z1 006'66 08s'cLl 000'SL 000°€9
(ev6'vS) s9v'062't 2e5°'SET'L 9/2'8L 090°L9 650'98 ovs'oLl 8S.'€0L 6£5'06 8ve'Ls S65°'9Z1 yvo'sLlL ¥LEL6 zss'iel L£8'¥0L
(825'192) (825'192) 9.L'8 (opv'25) (166'8S) (oig'e6l) (2vi'otr)  (Lev'orl) (2s'eg) (soe'e9) (959'2¢) (981°29) (8¥t'1) £8°11
001'266'L 001'266'L 005'69 00s'8iL 050's¥L 05€'0L€ 006'ciZ 000282 ooL‘izL 006'681 00€'5t 005'8S1 000'€ZL 000°€6
(659's2) 668°LLL ove'esL 000°6L 0082 00ge'LL 000°z¢L 005'66 ovi'ee 000'€S 000'2L 00€'0S 002'69 000'0€ 000've
(21) 514 5213 € 6 cl 0c 9l 0z 6 Sl 8 vl 14 €

"YA 10v/1s3 139ang NAr AV Hdv YN a34 NVI 03a AON 100 d3s onvy ne

€002 Ad $002Z Ad

(SSO7) INOONI ALMIOVS 13N

S3SN3dX3 LOFHIANI TVLOL

Qv3HY3A0
MIVMAIS
ONILY3S AYNXNT
321430 X018
SNOHLVY3dO
ONLLIIYVIN
JONVNId
3ALLND3X3
SASNIdXT LOFUIANI

3WOOINI SSOUD Q3Lsnrav

3WOINI ¥3HLO TVLOL
SWOINI SNOINVTIIOSIW
S3AILNIONI LIHOIL
3NOON! LSTH3UNI
ONISILYIAQY LNINVWNId
ONILYIS AUNXNT

JWNOONI ONILVHYIJO ¥IHLO

IWOONI LINIAI TVLOL

3WOODNI AYVTTIONY TVLOL
Qyvog O3aIA
S3ILT13AON
ONR3LYD
SNOISSAONOD
IFNOODNI AYVYTTIONY

3WOODNI IN3A3 123410 TvLOL
JNOIDNI 3DIAN3S
1N3Y

JWNOONI LN3A3 103410

3ONVAN3ILLY
SIONVWHOIYIJ/SAVA LINIAT

-

$007 ‘0f dung Suipuy 1824 (83514
SY31y31Y 123png
ALopPny BULY/UOYEIAU0Y) Apuno)) jud) - spidey puern

BU3IY [PPUY UBA - DS



1 080°29 0565, ¥85'928'C [1T¥72 165252 98268 §i¢'90z't  (825°192) 001°266'} 0¥e 2SL [} IVLOL ANVYS|
(Lri'set) 95¢'¥2¢ 60Z'67) - - 2997 00S'0 s'e 005'Z8 [ 3 SNONVTTIOSIN TVLOL
- - - - - - - - - - - UDWOM 10} INO ulL
(s61) S61 - - - - - - - - - MOYS ANY3ld JouioH Mooy
(101'%) 9z2'99 629'29 - - §29'2 005°2Z - 00s'2¢ 000's1 [ Jeujwag Aemuwsy
(s01'7) S0L'Y - - - - - - - - - eARSad JiSn YSU| saxE JBD
1e8'0Z SYe'Ly 919'89 . - 0096} 000°84 920" 6go'ot cov's v sjenbueg snooueljedsiy
(86¥°26) 86926 - - - - - - - - - snoyBiey
(620'08) 6.0°08 - - - - - - - - - ssadee)] ospuosg
(666'71) 206'2¢ 806°LL - - 5y - 1y'z 000's1 000°ZL z uopenpws 9Bo}j09)|
§28'8.1 £29'06€'L 86v'695°L - 009°10Z 00Z°ST 000705 869'76 000'Y¥L 000'Z61 3 SIM3ONOD TVLOL
(e29°201) £29'201 - - - - - - - - - uegsuyo
(957'16) 95¥'16 - - - - - - - - - Anunoy
¥56°LLE ws'isL'L 867'695°L - 009'10Z 002'sT 000'¥0S 869'76 000'YYL 000°Z64 v N0y
{199°01) 608'98S 8¥1'92s 0092 16£°8C £80'8 §64°€92 (1z5'9re) 008655 [ zr SMOHS ATINVYA V101
(9gv'zL) 0zL19 reT'sy - 144 v28'L 000°9€ (00£°18) 000'00} 00098 T Ajnuey snosue|easig
925'8L - 92582 oor z16'9 51 00v'9Z (g2e's1) 000'29 008'Z4 z SJ0p1y [Ing |BUO|ISSRJ0Id
(198'1) £05's9 2r9'e9 006 "wo'L sz§ §59°1E (zes'cz) 0059y 000'sh z $S0420)0} B}A3s0aty
(s86°2) 869'9¢ 7% 14 - F7534 [74] 092'se (evz'v2) 008°'sZ ove's € ssousRURIY
(zee's) zT'sy §68'6€ ooy oLe'z s8¢ 000'7Z (00z's2) 000'se 000°ZL z ©o8poy sauosg pue siing
(052'2) zeg'rL L 006 "'z F24] §S9°1¢ (zas'cz) 000'sS 000'cL € N se3sUoK
L'y reo'se y77y 4 - 0zo'y z19 000°9 svs'L 000°0¢ 000°L 3 20) uo simig
(sL1'er) 6LL'EY - - - - - - - - - 93] uQ suoidweyd
z6L'SH wZ'es £6E'LL - - 050'} sz8'ce (zav'ss) 000's6 000°ce 8 29) uo Aeusig
(1ov's) 0029 66222 - r720't (71} 0058 (oov's) 00052 000's I SI91058q0]S) WapeH
(628°12) 62812 BRO - SNy
(51£'y) 9r8'ss 1255 . - SISt 0007 (sys'cs) 005°28 000°SE 8 yroug B
£30'72 999'20§ 622185 0LL'6E 009'TL 178'ce 080'86¢ (zoe'cLs) 008°019 007'15¢ [ S1H0dS TV10L
805’9 18L'61 $62'9Z .- - 8L 000's 800'y 005'ZL 000'8 z spUEINO) ||eqiayseg 9B8jj0D
szv'os - sTY'os - - sil 000's (0s2°2) 005'2 000's ! suods snosueleosIy
(s85'81) 6ce'es ¥sT'LL - 009'21 ezl 000'rZ (025°92) 000'09 000'Z} z Bumsaip [euoissej0id|
66€ (s6¢) - - - - - - - - - 1ieqAs)10A JBUsISSa}04d|
518'99 - §28'99 - - 528 000°28 (000'98) 000°001 000'9L z Juawewno) AexooH YvON
606'91 858'2L 90've 0LL - 005°c 080'8Z 'z - oov'ol ! uosessald THN
(c£9°2) £€9'2 - - s)j0keld aBedwiy
1zy'y (91¥°s) (s66) Zi5'9 - - - (20e'v2) 00899 000'¥9 8 uosees JeinBay eBedwzy
- - - - - - - - - - - uosessasy afedwey|
820'y - 820'y 8z9't - - - (009'21) 000°0Z 000'91 4 puaysem JuS IV THY
(z6£'81) zee'st - - . - - - - - - spokeld suuo
80L'Y zL6'v9e 080'69€ 008'0¢ - 082'22 000°00¢ {o00°eee) 000'vrE 000°02Z or uoseag tenBay SUPLD
= = = - = = = = - - - uoseasald sUPuU9
£00Z A4 ¥00Z A3 EXCI swoou) | ) | SUEpUBNY  SJUBA] 2dAL IN3AT
AINVINVA IWOONI JWODN! paeog oopiA A N 6 o] o] LR leuay o ON
AN3A3 AN3AT £002
¥00Z ‘0¢ ounp Buipu3 Jesy, jeasiy
KAsewnwung jJusag
Auoyiny euesy / 0 A3unod juey; - spidey purig

BUAIY [3pUY UBA - ONS

@\



Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

SMG - Van Andel Arena

Indirect Expense Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2004

Budget Estimate
F/Y 2004 F/Y 2003 Variance
Salaries 987,828 946,983 (40,845)
Salaries Part - Time 506,200 514,189 7,989
Auto Allowance 10,025 9,325 (700)
Payroll Taxes 128,583 128,429 (154)
Employee Benefits 178,601 157,739 (20,862)
Pension 39,834 27,833 (12,001)
Union Expenses 56,844 39,564 (17,280)
Allocated Salaries (740,000) (741,782) (1,782)
Total Labor Costs 1,167,915 1,082,280 (85,635)
Contracted Security 235,000 211,625 (23,375)
Contracted Cleaning 26,000 25,176 (824)
Meetings 10,200 11,684 1,484
Meals & Entertainment 5,700 7,199 1,499
Dues & Subscriptions 2,500 3,330 830
Professional Fees 26,000 27,750 1,750
Employee Training 12,000 3,000 (9,000)
Printing 30,000 30,443 443
Advertising 36,000 35,894 (106)
Trash Removal 15,000 16,478 1,478
Landscaping 3,500 - (3,500)
Armored Services 3,600 3,918 318
Exterminating 4,000 2,600 (1,400)
Cleaning 5,400 6,845 1,445
Repairs & Maintenance 128,000 112,140 (15,860)
Supplies 181,100 177,475 (3,625)
Corporate Travel 7,500 2,000 (5,500)
Computer Expenses 65,000 46,197 (18,803)
Marketing Fund 45,000 42,147 (2,853)
Equipment Rental 15,600 15,543 (57)
Bank Service Charges 12,000 9,434 (2,566)
General Liability Insurance 90,269 72,457 (17,812)
Property Insurance 31,000 26,196 (4,804)
Insurance Expense 43,132 41,601 (1,531)
Printing & Stationary 11,000 6,000 (5,000)
Office Supplies 12,000 13,764 1,764
Postage 12,000 11,597 (403)
Parking Expense 19,100 21,420 2,320
Telephone 55,000 52,923 2,077)
Utilities 769,800 752,041 (17,759)
Management Fee 234,300 275,888 41,588
Incentive Fee 0 - -
Amortization 0 - -
Allocated Expenses (36,554) (40,672) (4,118)
Total Materials & Service 2,110,147 2,024,093 (86,054)
Total Indirect Expenses 3,278,062 3,106,373 (171,689)




SMG - Van Andel Arena / DeVos Place(Grand Center)
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Calculation
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2004

The management fee is broken up into two categories. The base fee and incentive fee.

The base fee started with the new contract in F/Y 2002 as $450,000 split evenly between
the Grand Center and Van Andel Arena. This fee is subject to an annual increase based
on the change in the CPI-U. This budget assumes that the increase will be 3% for fiscal
year 2004.

The incentive fee is based on benchmark revenues for each of the two facilities. The Van
Andel Arena benchmark is based on the number set in the SMG Managerial Contract
which is subject ot the same annual increase as stated above for the base fee. The Grand
Center benchmark is equal to the budgeted total gross revenue for each fiscal year. The
incentive fee based on a percentage of the combined revenues in excess of the combined
benchmark. SMG receives 20% of the first $1 million and 25% above that. In no fiscal
year can the incentive fee exceed that of the base fee.

SMG is entitled to the incentive fee as calculated above only if the combined Net Revenue
above Expenses for the facilities exceeds the total of $1,613,541 (Van Andel) and the
budgeted figure for the Grand Center.

Below is the calculation for the Base and Incentive Fee's for F/Y 2004 compared to the
expected fee for F/Y 2003.

Arena Grand Center Total FY 2003

Budget Budget Budget Act/Est
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,463,522  (1,598,423) (134,901) 1,375,379
Benchmark 1,613,541  (1,598,423) 15,118 1,043,839
Excess (150,019) - (150,019) 331,540

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Incentive Fee

Arena Grand Center Total FY 2003
Budget Budget Budget Act/Est
Base Fee 234,300 234,300 468,600 454,950
Revenue 4,741,584 2,380,958 7,122,542 6,695,976
Benchmark Revenue 4,373,495 2,380,958 6,754,453 6,359,769
Projected Revenue Increase - - - 336,207
Incentive Percentage 20% 20% 20% 20%
Total Incentive Fee - - - 67,241

Total SMG Management Fee 234,300 234,300 468,600 522,191




SMG - Van Andel Arena / DeVos Place (Grand Center)
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Capital Budget
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2004

Project F/Y 2004 F/Y 2005
{1} Terrazzo Floor Repair 38,000
{1} Hydraulic Seating 190,000

Security System Upgrades 30,000

Phone System Upgrades 15,000

Ice Deck Cover 100,000

Speaker System - Main Entrance 15,000

Banquet Refurbishment - Exterior 100,000
{2} Refinish DeVos Performance Hall Stage Floor 50,000

Total 160,000 378,000

{1} The Hydraulic seating project is estimated to come in much higher than the
original $70,000 that was approved as a part of the Fiscal Year 2003 budget.
By virtue of the added expense, as well as, the estimated loss at DeVos
Place, it was determined that delaying the project was the best option. The
terrazzo floor repair was a project that was always intended on being done
along with the seating, thus it too will be delayed.

{2} Stage Floor work has been delayed due to the interior work that is scheduled
to be done on DeVos Performance Hall each of the next two years.



SMG - Van Andel Arena / DeVos Place(Grand Center)
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Calculation
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2004

Position F/Y 2003 F/Y 2004 Chang

General Manager 0.50 1.00 -
Administrative Assistant 0.50 1.00 -
Director of Finance 0.50 1.00 -
Accounting Manager 1.00 2.00 -
Accounting Support 1.50 3.00 1.00
Box Office Manager 0.80 1.00 -
Assistant Box Office Manager 1.00 2.00 -
Premium Seat/Suite 1.00 1.00 -
Box Office Support 1.00 1.00 -
Director of Marketing 0.50 1.00 -
Marketing Manager 1.00 1.00 -
Marketing Support 1.00 1.00 -
Group Sales Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00
Assistant General Manager 0.33 1.00 -
Director of Facilities 1.00 1.00
Maintenance Manager 0.33 - (1.00)
Maintenance Support 4.00 10.00 5.00
Operations Manager 1.00 2.00 -
Operations Support 9.00 17.00 6.00
Director of Sales {1} - 1.00 -
Sales Support - 1.00 -
Director of Event Services - 1.00 -
Event Coordinators 2.00 6.00 -
Total {2} 27.96 57.00 13.00

{1} Director of Sales started April 1, 2003
{2} Increase is 2.5 Arena and 10.50 Convention



Item V.1.

DE VOS PLACE

OPERATING BUDGET
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2004

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Bob Johnson

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity



(esz'vee’t) (boL'voZ)  (ceb'ses’L) (sie'soz) (sze'sLe)  (4e1'96)  (¥G0's0L)  291°c6 (98L'vi2)  ovl'LL (s00‘'0vL) (Z8L'vet) (9Z8'6SL) (20.'802)  (066'822)
(S12'629°'L) 99i'0s€'Z  18£'6.6'C  859'LLE £€5'8€¢ 669'L9€  00Z'P2F  00Z'lEy  00Z'PZ¥  99€'8LE  €€5'€0€ £2L'092  £29'9ve  £29'9bC £29'9v2
(¥8L'20L) o0ob'zZL'L  v8S'628'L  186'SZL L28'ovt £66'S41 ¥6¥'8€2 PeP'8ET  v6¥'8€Z 099'C6L Lz8'ezl 115'96 110'e8 110'e8 120'c8
(e19'2) LE0'vL vvo'Le ze8'e 208’9 zo8'e zog'9 z08'e zo8'9 208'9 zo8'9 208'9 208'e z08'9 208'9
(25'pLE) cLL'eEY 09Z'svL ££8'89 158'89 158'89 158'89 158'1L 458'89 158'89 258'65 158'05 158'05 158'0S 158'0S
(yoy'ese) £Y6'SLY Le'66. 199'99 999'2L 999'99 999'99 999'9L 999'99 999'99 999'99 905'29 905'29 905'29 905'29
(gsL'ect) - 88L'cEL 880°LL 00L'LL 00L'LL 00L'LL 00L'LL 00L'LL 00L'bL 00L'LL 00L'LL 00L'LL 00L'LL 0oLt
(ros'Le) SeL'vh BEP'9L 69¢'9 0.£'9 0.£'9 0.¢'9 0.£'9 0.£'9 0.£'9 0.¢'9 0.¢'9 0.¢'9 0.¢'9 0.¢'9
(rvs'or) 298'/5L LLL'86L z95'L 655'9L 655'91L 655'9L 655'SL 655'9) 655'94 655'9} 655'91 65591 655'9L 655'9L
(1ez'01) L7101 802'ZLL 9€c's z5¢€'6 z5¢'6 z5¢'6 zs€'e z5¢e'6 zse'6 z5¢'6 zse's zse's z5¢e'6 25¢€'s
956'P6C 200'980'  856'08£'T  £¥E'90L 809'8LL 296'69C  ovL'gle z9e'0es vLo'0LZ  2ZLL'06E ¥25'col LY6'SEL 162'98 9L6'L€ ££9'L1L
$05'09 964’121 000281 vLL'SL o9L'SL 99161 991's1 991'51L 991Gl 99L'SL a9lL'sL 991's1 99L'SL o9L'slL o9L'slL
000°2k 000'21L 000°L 000'L 000'L 000'L 000°t 000'L 000°} 000°'L 000°'L 000'L 000°'L 000'L
000'sZ 000's2 1802 £80'C £80°2 €802 £80'C £80'Z £80'C £80°'2 £80' £80' £80°2 £80'C
000°021 000'0Z1 000°0L 000°0} 000°0L 000'0} 000°04 000°'04 0000} 000'0} 0000} 000°0L 000'0L 000°0L
000'sZ 000'sZ 180T £80'Z £80'2 £80'Z £80'Z £80'2 £80'Z £80' £80'C £80°'C £80°'C £80'C
5h'vee 905'¥96'L  856'86L'T  69L'L6 zrb'eol 96£'0s2 086208 96L'6lS  8v8'p6l o¥6'v.LE 85¢'svl 5.2'02) LE9'LL 0s.'ze 19p'2
£ve'962 L¥8'S6Y #8126 65b'ee LEL'ET zee's6 S¥0'20L cri'sel £08'9p 8£6'€2Z L¥8'22 $96'2¢ 6.6'LZ Lb's £08
022'90} 022'90} 0S.'L 00€'6 00L'LL o.£'ol 00Z's1 006'ch 009'Z1L 055'8 05L's osL's 005'2 059
201'9ZL 201'9LL 669'S 1£8 zog'L2 T26'LL $61'SZ 955"y 092's8 o9’z Lip'e LT - -
£19'20¢ £19'20¢ 0S¢£'6 125°L 298'Ly 0LL'YE 0vZ'L6 122's vie'zoL 0gz'e 99r's 196'S 65 €51
00S'LL 00S'LL - 0sz'L 052 000'Z 0S. 0sZ'L 0sz'L 0sz'z 0s. 0sz') - -
1zZ1'66 121'66 £Sh'L 8vb'L P66°LL ozh'y 186'S1 £68'cl S69'71L 998 658'L 105'L 1L -
L19'L6 L19'16 1e'e SLL'2 ¥2e's 15112 LI¥'0E 1862 6522 662'S £2¢e'e ove'L 118 -
(168'19) $99'89v'L  ¥I2'90v'L  OLL'LS Lig'os #90'SS 1 5£6'00c  €5.'62¢ Lb0'8yL 800°LSL L115's21 0L8'.8 2596t 60£'6L $99'L
866'8t 866'8Y ose'l 1z (1¥9) ©z1'11) £05's 968'1 856'L1L 6zh'vL zi6's 119'9 (g9t) (196)
9LL'258") 912'28¢'L  08£'9S 068'8. S0.'6S1 §50'2LC  0SZ'v2E StL'eElL 050'6€L 880'LLL 8€8'L8 S16'TP S..'61 §29'C
6.1'66 962'L5Y 610'L8S 00€'L1L §51'6€ 05522 508'08 009'LyL S0P'8S 05S'¥L 509'9Y 0s1'sz S0Z'v2 osz'zL 00S
(9¢) 8z¢ 262 (1] 14 62 6¢ 9 S¢ S¢ e x4 -] 6 i
avA IOov1S3  135ang NOP AVI ydv UYW g3Jd NV o3a AON 120 d3s onvy anre
£00Z Ad ¥00Z Ad

(SS07) IWOONI ALNIOYS L3N

S3SNIdX3 LO3YIANI TV.LOL

QvIHY3A0
301440 X08
S3DIAYIS LN3IAT
SNOLLYY3dO
ERLS)
ONILINYYIN
JONVYNIJ
IALLNOIXZ
S3SNIJX3 LOFHIANI

JNOONI SSONO gaLsnrav

3WOONI ¥3HLO TVLOL
JWOONI ¥3HLO0
LINYILNI
SIAILNIONI LINOIL
3INOOINI LSIYILNI
JWOONI ONLLYY3dO ¥3HLO

3FWOINI LN3AZ Tv10L

3WNOONI AYVTIIONY TVLOL
1N3WdIND3
IYOIR¥LO313
HOLVYH003a
ALI3AON
ONIRALYD
SNOISS3INOD
JNODNI AYVTIIONY

3WOONI LN3A3 103414 TVLOL
3WOON! 3DINY3S
AN3Y

JWOONI LN3A3 103410

FONVAN3LLY
SIONVINBOJYIL/SAVA LNIAT

007 ‘0¢ dung Sutpuy 183X (83514

JUIUIAIBIS JWOIU] P

Aoyny BUISY/UORUIAUCY) Ayuno)) Judy] - spidey purin
(191u3) puran) MEL] SOA( - ONS



169952 CIYET 6Lotes't Co 20092} T1920c s w0eeL (1780 SIT6L6 A 05t TIVH NOLLIGIHXE - TVA0L
[Terezer) YaZl'6sT SCHIZY 0S0'vE (53 007’9 R2CTY S042 Tesa'ch) TH0ZL 000'ST 3
¥s (50 Z1051 00+ L T 33 - ez SLL'0L 05T 9
ors'st ors'st 000's . - 9T ure 009'Z 000'41 008's ]
(cos'z2) oss'or uo'sy 058’7 . 14 ere 629's (cev's) 009'rL 036'y 2z
or'y srt'ic Zre'se 0307 o9 (115 805's) - (96'D) 03z'2 osz'ob H
ieg's 0892 t9r'se 00Z'y 66L ce8'cz . (rr9's} cIT'vL 0ss's oL
(z80'2) £60'91 900'6 ose't ozs 6s0'c . (ey) s26's 0082 z
{8L0'ss1) sLo'scl - - - - - - - - - -
¥S9°057 726967 9I¥'58L Ciad 196y YIZ'0ZL =] 6L1°Y9 £50% $9C'508 0ST612 09 SMOHS OM&nd V.10L]
(528'v1) 9se'Ly 186'se 001't 168 6SH'E [ r6't s2v's szV'ez 008'vtL z SMOYS AIGNd "OSIN
- - - - . - - - - - - S91qqoH ¢ S0y,
100'92 100'92 oot 029 2] 980°1 ” 008'c2 00s'94 9 ofesiadng
0ze's £96'02 ez - 608's o61't L]0 196 006 sz 0002 14 SIDAYIA [BUOHEAIIY
'y (715 ] 00§ 0z9 §92 . 81l oL0't 929'7 050'4 € sopequ) @ sBujysiung swoy
2.4 989'52 ZzZe'ns 00Z't ozo'y 009’9 ot [¥3 41 (so0'c} §25'96 0008} 9 moyg jeog
"o'vk "o'vl 002 SEE [} - 728'2 (s28'e) 009'Z1 0009 z sopaAascI0N
9L ors‘zE 9LL'02 000's - ”7r o 9£0's {sz2) org'st ooy 14 o4sny
(90Z'00) 90202 - - - - - - - - - - 20URNdS
10y (17914 000's ore's ooz't 3 0Ly 0s2'9 000°zC 000's ] MOYS JBD WaISnY.
(geo'2} sKz'9z uvee oo Flx g ooy's [ r62'e (s91'1) 0sg'rl 009'ch € Mmoys Jjog
i s9s's ze9'e o5t 17191 sou'L - g9t {ost) 0sg's 005'y € SEBS/MOYS Y1)
£60'cL 929'sE4 eL9'r8l 000} 08’2 00892 oy s S16'S 929'18 000'05 14 Bupianuy, g sagowony
85’9 87T ws'e2 0zi §89'c sze'e . z08'c (081} 008’6l 000'2 v
608"y 02509 620's6 00s't 00L's 050'th z2y we'LL (069's) oor'es 000'0t v 2 5pooy Bugs
aus'c ese'cl sev'a 0872 ote 7' - 00Z (820'2) 0se'rL 008°'S 4 smoys B
626'6Z 90'LL 186'901 009' 090'Z4 00Z'04 . c8z's 289 05Z'v2 000'Z¢ » UIpIRY  MWOH
TSV [ 992601 05162 9’62t 66°08F 1892y €Z¥'s [E35T) T I 00692 19 SMOHS3QVYL/SNOLLNIANOD V101
(P77 1) er9'oz u9's ooL's 05't sic'c ls®) os's 00r's € smoysopes) ISIN
o'zl - [YZx /1% 004 oov'0s 009'c6 . (ocs's) - 000's z
7] ne's ze'r 000"t 529'y 0897 z89't (D] 0z6'L 000's z Jamm
(geg'os) gss'oL - - - . - - . - - $31GQOH p shoy
- s3uadS
. - SIAIDS POOL B
(200's)} 900's - Buisiny
(962'23) 9,6L'2 - - - . - - - - - - ssuwiqn
18809 19809 000'% $20's 005’8 0992 L't 025'} 000'4¢ 000'y 14 snoyBgloy
626's 996'¢ seg's 006 - - sot - 06 008's o008 ] feotiod
177 9] 960'LY s 00 §90'st os¢'s 6ie's - {ose') 000're 00s'L € 2D P wnooneg
clo's 98z'LL 66Z'6L 004 208"t oes't we'y 7] (19) szl 096'c ] JBD YYEOH P [EINPON
69's ssumIMsUY)
Get) 9sl't sog‘cl 0s't ozt siT's (og9) 0002 000'Z z wauwaro
(yte's) °6's - - - - . - - - Ausnpu) [essung
619'2 094AI05 POOy
999'C 9l0'zs z28'6S 000't 0z0'y 020'9s 0zZ'y - (s8¥'2) 008'yc 000'y 14 uonnRqLsQ g Buisseoold pooy
(696'01) 7'z 999'cs 73 09 o0s8 [1%4 " (068) osg'LL 006 H UORSAI0IG Buld B 1]
(1218 orL'vs 695'ts 009 0zo'y 0089 " soL't (0oz's) 000'0y 0022 € umnogioy P asmynooly
§82'7 §05°1Z1 06L'cT 0s0'cl 20L'YL s79'2Z oLz Ly (215'8) or'vs 008'2L z vogeonpy
(822'02} 827'02 - - - - - - - - - - =uag
rec'se - r6c'se 000'Z Sre'Z 0552 o'z s9l't {os'e) 50076 055'L s ssouysng|
(8s9'c2) 859°'€ - - - - - - - - - - uonongsuon g Bulpjing
re'? 1244 v1012 002’y 2€e [ 73 £06's (ss¥'t) 889'Z1 009's z a1u0 Jiey p Laneag
(rea'ns) reo'el . - - - - - - - - - Bupjueg
a2e'cL 8E'cL oot "’y's [14%4 1oy it (c99) 008's 008 3 Bupuuey @ umnauby
(rre'zs) "i'es 007's8 000'¢ 608'L SZVL'T oS’y - (ooy) (3% 006's 6 suonerossy|
€002 Ad 9002 A3 =) =) =] BWwo3u| ewodU| wodu) =) WodU| SIUTPUIRY |U9A3 STIVH U8IHX3
IONVRIVA IWODNI IWOINI udwdinb3 1E2tg9013 10ppI0900 Ayosron Buuxes UOIESOUCD BAANS 1muey o ON
IN3AI IN3A3 9002

£00Z '0¢ Jung Jujpug swa) |wosg
Kewwng jusag
Auoyiny euaryuonuIAuo)) Ajuno)) Judy - spidey puesn
(19112 puran) 18] SOA3( - DNS



—

ﬂ _ 057961 _ 8968612 _ 0zZ 90! 200921 190t 005’11 22166 11916 26607 SLLISCL L0255 62 SONIGTING 1V - V101,
66202 [ 620209 009'5¥ 00'tt 0061 orcer 0248 099'9cy 528522 23 HS13M/ TIVH SOA3Q - TVLOL
(868'15) s6'ic - - - - - - - - SLNIAZ HSTIM OSIN
(se2'21) 160'c91 coc'srL osvoL 00s's sot 990's 200z 0s1'26 ose'se M SINIAT SOAIA OSIN
[Yegny 889'902 660812 0or'1z - se9 5y e ser'eLl s18'26 55 ANOHJWAS 49
(zov's) 80051 zZs'onL 00r's 000' - L oze're osy'ss 00z'zL or QNS JULYIHL AYMOYONS
¥36't ors'ze yos'se 0szy - - 6L 009' s76'2 oor'z 9 vu3do o
7564 230°cy 155'29 004’2 - - - 09L't 906’} §E9°L 055'vy 00v'y4 L 137va ¥

002 A3 ¥00Z A4 SWOON TWOONT IWOON! SWOONI SWOSNI SWOONI  3WOONI SWOONI _ JONVa ETETE] VN3UY RSTAMTIVH SOAS0

FONVRIVA IWOSNI SWOONI INGWIND3  TVORIOFTE L4vuOLNY AVEAON  ONMNEALYD  3OVN3AIE  3OAN3S INZY  -NaUY 400N
IN3AT AN3A3 aNY Q004 13N

$00Z ‘08 sung Buipu3 Jeo,A [Easiy
Aewwing juaagy
KoY BUSIYIORUIAUCY JUNC Jud) - Spidey puet
U pusig) a3e1d SOAIA - OWS




SMG - DeVos Place (Grand Center)

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Indirect Expense Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2004

Budget Estimate
F/Y 2004 F/Y 2003 Variance

Salaries - Full Time 1,457,067 771,652 (679,415)
Salaries Part Time 798,094 826,457 28,363
Auto Allowance 27,250 18,251 (8,999)
Payroll Taxes 201,397 148,976 (52,421)
Employee Benefits 315,756 118,590 (197,166)
Pension 50,316 27,164 (23,152)
Union Expenses 65,100 51,854 (13,246)
Allocated Salaries (1,442,163) (1,044,727) 397,436

Total Labor Costs 1,472,817 924 217 (548,600)
Contracted Security 135,000 64,794 (70,206)
Meetings 31,000 13,139 (17,861)
Meals & Entertainment 14,500 4,121 (10,379)
Dues & Subscriptions 500 1,269 769
Professional Fees 31,500 29,300 (2,200)
Employee Training 10,000 645 (9,355)
Printing 9,600 1,307 (8,293)
Advertising 20,000 6,725 (13,275)
Trash Removal 30,880 22,000 (8,880)
Landscaping 0 - -
Armored Services 2,200 2,298 98
Exterminating 14,400 4,388 (10,012)
Cleaning 12,000 - (12,000)
Construction Costs 38,400 23,767 (14,633)
Repairs & Maintenance 145,000 72,922 (72,078)
Snow Removal 0 - -
Supplies 176,000 93,062 (82,938)
Corporate Travel 10,000 4,662 (5,338)
Computer Expenses 65,000 46,540 (18,460)
Equipment Rental 6,000 4,737 (1,263)
Bank Service Charges 9,000 9,138 138
General Liability Insurance 62,673 51,473 (11,200)
Property Insurance 100,000 31,341 (68,659)
Insurance Expense 53,445 30,189 (23,256)
Local Taxes 0 - -
Printing & Stationary 13,500 5,448 (8,052)
Office Supplies 7,500 6,185 (1,315)
Postage 5,000 1,347 (3,653)
Parking Expense 24,000 17,640 (6,360)
Telephone 52,500 35,952 (16,548)
Utilities 1,192,666 600,226 (592,440)
Management Fee 234,300 246,304 12,004
Incentive Fee 0 -
Allocated Expenses (4,970) -
Total Materials & Service 2,506,564 1,425,949 (1,075,645)
Total Indirect Expenses 3,979,381 2,350,166 (1,624,245)




SMG - Van Andel Arena / DeVos Place(Grand Center)
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Calculation
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2004

The management fee is broken up into two categories. The base fee and incentive fee.

The base fee started with the new contract in F/Y 2002 as $450,000 split evenly between
the Grand Center and Van Andel Arena. This fee is subject to an annual increase based
on the change in the CPI-U. This budget assumes that the increase will be 3% for fiscal
year 2004.

The incentive fee is based on benchmark revenues for each of the two facilities. The Van
Andel Arena benchmark is based on the number set in the SMG Managerial Contract
which is subject ot the same annual increase as stated above for the base fee. The Grand
Center benchmark is equal to the budgeted total gross revenue for each fiscal year. The
incentive fee based on a percentage of the combined revenues in excess of the combined
benchmark. SMG receives 20% of the first $1 million and 25% above that. In no fiscal
year can the incentive fee exceed that of the base fee.

SMG is entitled to the incentive fee as calculated above only if the combined Net Revenue
above Expenses for the facilities exceeds the total of $1,613,541 (Van Andel) and the
budgeted figure for the Grand Center.

Below is the calculation for the Base and Incentive Fee's for F/Y 2004 compared to the
expected fee for F/Y 2003.

Arena Grand Center Total FY 2003

Budget Budget _ Budget Act/Est
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,463,522  (1,598,423) (134,901) 1,375,379
Benchmark 1,613,541  (1,598,423) 15,118 1,043,839
Excess (150,019) - (150,019) 331,540

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena Grand Center Total FY 2003
Budget Budget Budget Act/Est
Base Fee 234,300 234,300 468,600 454,950
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,741,584 2,380,958 7,122,542 6,695,976
Benchmark Revenue 4,373,495 2,380,958 6,754,453 6,359,769
Projected Revenue Increase - - - 336,207
Incentive Percentage 20% 20% 20% 20%
Total Incentive Fee - - - 67,241
Total SMG Management Fee 234,300 234,300 468,600 522,191




SMG - Van Andel Arena / DeVos Place (Grand Center)
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Capital Budget
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2004

Project F/Y 2004 F/Y 2005
{1} Terrazzo Floor Repair 38,000
{1} Hydraulic Seating 190,000

Security System Upgrades 30,000

Phone System Upgrades 15,000

Ice Deck Cover 100,000

Speaker System - Main Entrance 15,000

Banquet Refurbishment - Exterior 100,000
{2} Refinish DeVos Performance Hall Stage Floor 50,000

Total 160,000 378,000

{1} The Hydraulic seating project is estimated to come in much higher than the
original $70,000 that was approved as a part of the Fiscal Year 2003 budget.
By virtue of the added expense, as well as, the estimated loss at DeVos
Place, it was determined that delaying the project was the best option. The
terrazzo floor repair was a project that was always intended on being done
along with the seating, thus it too will be delayed.

{2} Stage Floor work has been delayed due to the interior work that is scheduled
to be done on DeVos Performance Hall each of the next two years.



SMG - Van Andel Arena / DeVos Place(Grand Center)
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Calculation
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2004

Position F/Y 2003 F/Y 2004 Change

General Manager 0.50 1.00 -
Administrative Assistant 0.50 1.00 -
Director of Finance 0.50 1.00 -
Accounting Manager 1.00 2.00 -
Accounting Support 1.50 3.00 1.00
Box Office Manager 0.80 1.00 -
Assistant Box Office Manager 1.00 2.00 -
Premium Seat/Suite 1.00 1.00 -
Box Office Support 1.00 1.00 -
Director of Marketing 0.50 1.00 -
Marketing Manager 1.00 1.00 -
Marketing Support 1.00 1.00 -
Group Sales Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00
Assistant General Manager 0.33 1.00 -
Director of Facilities 1.00 1.00
Maintenance Manager 0.33 - (1.00)
Maintenance Support 4.00 10.00 5.00
Operations Manager 1.00 2.00 -
Operations Support 9.00 17.00 6.00
Director of Sales {1} - 1.00 -
Sales Support - 1.00 -
Director of Event Services - 1.00 -
Event Coordinators 2.00 6.00 -
Total {2} 27.96 57.00 13.00

{1} Director of Sales started April 1, 2003
{2} Increase is 2.5 Arena and 10.50 Convention



Item V.ii.

FISCAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT
MEMORANDUM

TO: Steven Heacock
Chair CAA - Finance Committee

FROM:  Robert WhiteQ/?/
Fiscal Services!Pirector

SUBJECT: Convention/Arena Authority Finances
FY2004 Budget Request

DATE: April 30, 2003

The attached material summarizes the administrative costs of the Convention/Arena Authority
for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2003 and 2004. This material incorporates the facility
operating revenue, expenditures and capital replacement request as submitted by SMG, Facilities
Manager.

The first table, attached hereto, summarizes the SMG Facilities budget for FY2003 & 2004. The
most recently updated estimate for the current fiscal year (FY2003) discloses a combined
facility, net operating income projection that is almost a $360,000 increase over the original
budgetary allowances. The FY2004 combined operating income statement projects a combined
($135,000) net operating loss. The significant change in financial operating results is driven
primarily by the much higher level of facility operating and maintenance expense to be incurred
in DeVos Place, which will be offset by only a moderate first year increase in operating
revenues.

The second table following this correspondence summarizes the anticipated revenues,
expenditures and change in net assets of the Convention/Arena Authority for the current and
upcoming (FY2004) fiscal years. Based on the most recent update of revenues available to the
administrative portion of the budget, it is projected that the Authority will end the current fiscal
year (June 30, 2003) with a net assets balance slightly in excess of $5 million. The fiscal year
2004 budget request discloses a sharply reduced revenue position. In summary, it is projected
that the Authority will end (June 30, 2004) the upcoming fiscal year with a net assets balance of
approximately $3.5 million.



The final table attached, following this cover memorandum, provides a detailed analysis of the
operating and capital sub funds maintained by the Convention/Arena Authority. Assuming
Authority Board approval of the FY2004 budget request, line items and financial reporting will
be provided on a monthly basis in this format to the CAA-Finance Committee.

Sue Waddell, Jana Wallace and I participated in preparation of the attached recommendations.
We are available to answer any questions, which may arise pertaining to this material.

Cc: Daryl Delabbio
Kurt Kimball



Table 1
Grand Rapids/Kent County Convention Arena Authority
SMG Facilities Budget
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2003 & 2004

FY2003 FY2004
Budget Estimate Requested
VanAndel Arena
Operating * Revenues $ 4,342,671 $ 4,609,974 $ 4,741,584
* Expenses - Facilities (2,875,049) (2,830,485) (3,043,762)
- Management Fees (227,475) (275,888) (234,300)
Net Operating Income $ 1,240,147 $ 1,503,601 $ 1,463,522

DeVos Place
Operating * Revenues $ 1,991,859 $ 2,086,002 $ 2,380,958
* Expenses - Facilities (2,124,356) (2,103,862) (3,745,081)
- Management Fees (227,475) (246,304) (234,300)
Net Operating Income $ (359,972) $ (264,164) $(1,598,423)

Net Available to CAA:
VanAndel Arena $ 1,240,147 $ 1,503,601 $ 1,463,522
DeVos Place (359,972) (264,164) (1,598,423)
$ 880,175 $ 1,239,437 $ (134,901)




Table II
Grand Rapids/Kent County Convention Arena Authority
Operating/Capital Replacement Budget
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2003 & 2004

FY2003 FY2004
Estimate Requested
Revenues:
Facility Operation (Net) $1,239,437 ($134,901)
Land Lease 348,471 107,000
Interest on Investments 32,000 32,000
Miscellaneous 6,000 8,000
1,625,908 12,099
Expenditures:
Administration 210,013 239,396 !
Pedestrian Safety - 95,000 2
Capital Replacement 232,798 160,000
Capital Construction 1,000,000 1,000,000
1,442,811 1,494,396
Net Excess (Deficit) 183,097 (1,482,297)
Net Assets - Beginning of Year 4,817,502 5,000,599
Net Assets - End of Year $5,000,599 $3,518,302
FY2004 Budget Notes:

! The line-item for "Accounting/Audit Services" includes allowances of $20,000 for Price
Waterhouse Coopers audit fee, $17,245 for bookeeping services including check writing,
payroll processing & monthly financial reports and $22,000 for City (Jana Wallace) budgeting,
financial recordkeeping/reporting, year-end financial statement preparation and investment

management (new in FY2004).

2 City/County/SMG request to fund 36.28% of staffing costs related to Pedestrian Safety/Traffic

control at VanAndel Arena and the DeVos Place events in FY2004.



TABLE ill

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

OPERATING FUND

FY 2003 REVISED BUDGET AND FY 2004 PROPOSED BUDGET

SUBMITTED APRIL 30, 2003

Administration and Facilities Operations

Capital Replacement

FY 2003 FY 2003 FY 2004 FY 2003 FY 2003 FY 2004
Original Revised Proposed Original Revised Proposed
Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget _ Budget
REVENUES
Facility Operations $ 2,170,975 $ 2,591,704 $ 1,827,565 $ - $ - $ -
Land lease 107,772 348,471 107,000 - - -
Interest on Investments 34,880 20,000 20,000 25,120 12,000 12,000
Capital Replacement Reserve Trfr 184,418 - 930,402 (184,418) - (930,402)
Miscellaneous Revenue - 6,000 8,000 - - -
TOTAL REVENUES 2,498,045 2,966,175 2,892,967 (159,298) 12,000 (918,402)
EXPENDITURES
Accounting / Auditing Services 25,635 35,900 59,245 - - -
Insurance - Property and Liability 33,050 29,100 33,595 - - -
Legal Services 33,550 32,000 32,000 - - -
Other Contractual Services 43,000 42,000 42,000 - - -
Pedestrian Safety - - 95,000
Facility Management Fee - - - - - -
Meeting Expense 890 890 890 - - -
Supplies 1,350 1,000 1,000 - - -
Transfer to Construction Fund 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 - - -
Sub-total Services 1,137,475 1,140,890 1,263,730 - - -
Electricity 727,000 758,835 1,031,332 - - -
Steam 471,000 525,040 831,834 - - -
Water and Sewer 92,800 68,392 99,300 - - -
Sub-total Utilities 1,290,800 1,352,267 1,962,466 - - -
Building Additions & Improvements - - - 380,200 197,528 45,000
Facility Equipment Acquisition - - - 50,500 35,270 115,000
Sub-total Capital Replacement - - - 430,700 232,798 160,000
Employee Wages 52,240 52,000 53,300 - - -
Employee Benefits 17,530 17,123 17,366 - - -
Sub-total Payroll 69,770 69,123 70,666 - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES' 2,498,045 2,562,280 3,296,862 430,700 232,798 160,000
EXCESS/ (DEFICITYOFFUNDS §$ - $ 403,895 $ (403,895) $ (589,998) $ (220,798) $ (1,078,402)
FUND BALANCE - beg. of year 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,403,895 1,236,069 1,817,502 1,596,704

Transfer Excess Reserve 2 - - - -

FUND BALANCE - end of year $ 3,000,000 $ 3,403,895 _§$ 3,000,000 $ 646,071

$1,596,704 $ 518,302

Note 1: Expenditures do not include an allowances for FY 2003 and FY 2004 depreciation expense.

Note 2: Balances in excess of $3,000,000 minimum required Operating Reserve are transferred to Capital Replacement Reserve



BUILDING COMMITTEE REPORT
To
Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
May 28, 2003

Following is a summary of each of the major zones, ateas and phases of the project with a narrative of the
major work activities in each.

GRAND GALLFRY

Bay Area Interiors, our subcontractor has begun to gtind the epoxy terrazzo system. They have
completed the intricate layout throughout the space. Painting of the overhead exposed structure is
complete along with the installation of the snake light. The exterior section of the canopies are now
receiving paint and lighting.

In the Meeting Rooms, drywall finishing, painting and ceiling grid installations ate complete. The acoustic

wall panel installation continues on the walls and on the operable pattitions.

H & H, the painting sub continues to paint miscellaneous offices, cotridors, staitwells, communication
closets and bulkheads on all levels including the lower parking area offices, and is applying finish coats and
vinyl wall coverings in these areas as well.

Ceramic tile installations are underway in the Meeting Level and Parking Level Restrooms by Johnson
Flooring and Midwest Tile.

Cleveland Construction, Inc., in addition to the Meeting Room grid and drywall work, has completed
framing and hanging most restroom areas and is working on elevator lobbies, corridors and back of house
suppott spaces. Andy J. Egan Mechanical Co. and ElecTech are very nearly complete with the HVAC
systems that serve most of the Grand Gallery. Testing of the equipment is complete. When utilities are in
place the equipment will be run to condition the space this summer.

Overall the Grand Gallery and Meeting spaces remain on track for completion as scheduled.

EXHIBIT HALL

Steel Service Corporation has completed the structural steel erection and detailing and punch list items
except touch up paint.

Kent/Tillman LLC, the concrete subconttactor has completed the Exhibit Hall floor slab and the truck
dock area slab on grade. Clean up and punch list preparation is underway by Kent/Tillman.

Page 1



Andy J. Egan Mechanical has set cooling towers, chillers and is setting ait handling units that setve the
Exhibit Hall. Piping of these units is ongoing. Target Sheet Metal, Inc. is installing the high ductwork in
the Exhibit Hall along with the lighting and fite protection subcontractors.

The enclosure of the Exhibit Box is complete on the East side, and West sides. Soffits, trim and column
covers will continue on the East and West, while studs and metal panels continue on the Notth. The
north elevation is approximately 95% enclosed. Roofing and brick at the dock ate nearly complete.

SITE WO

Work is planned to begin with the arrival of spring weather along Michigan Street in May, and in front of
DeVos Hall in June. These areas, along with the Monroe drop off lane ate to be completed the fall of
2003, Planter Wall construction along the West side of the Exhibit Hall began in Aptil.

The site logistics plan for the next phase of work, which commences on June 1, 2003 has been prepated
by Erhardt/Hunt and received approval from the adjacent properties (Amway Hotel) and city officials.
Implementation of this plan is being carried out as needed, including the construction of a temporary
entrance into the Grand Center. '

PHASE 3
The “buy-out” of the balance of the project continued through this month with the award of the Phase 2
& 3 Signage Package. The wotk that has been awarded to date is compliant with the overall project
budget including the signage package to Capital Manufacturing.

In the Welsh Auditorium, which is to be fully demolished this summer, asbestos abatement continued this
month. Selective demo utility relocation and salvage activities are being planned ahead of mass demo.

Page 2



Item Vl.c.i.

NENMERANDUM

CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS

DATE: May 9, 2003

TO: Steve Heacock
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Finance Committee Chair

FROM: Jana M. Walllace %W' (/\)

Fiscal Services Analyst
SUBJECT: Monthly Disbursements Report

Attached for your review are the lists of invoices processed for payment during the most
recent period. Expenditures for the period are summarized below.

Dates checks were issued Operating Fund Construction Fund
April 28, 2003 $ 27,240.18 $ 165,584.03
May 14, 2003 110,237.30 3,973,395.34
Payroll — 04/18/2003 1,920.76 --
Payroll — 05/02/2003 1,920.76 --
Disbursements from C/AA Funds $ 141,319.00 $4,138,979.37

Total disbursements for the Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority during
the period April 18 through May 14, 2003, were $4,280,298.37.

Please call me at 456-4514 if you need additional information.

Attachments



sasuadxa Bunelado ; uORONISUOI-UON = O
sasuadxa pajejal UORONIISUOD JBJUSY) LUOHUSAUOD = )

£0026050 mwl spcgpledorsaueed

jJudwAed 10} PasSSad0id SAJIOAU] jelol  $9°2E9°'€80‘V $
JUN029Yy Bupesad woyj Juswiled 10§ paplwgng SadloAuj jejol  0£°2¢€20LL S
JUNO22Y UOIIONJIISUOY) WO} JudwAed 1O} papiwgng SIJN0AU| [eJoL  $£'66£°C26°C$
saolnIag [edsld A)D Aq papiwgng s8dloAuj - jejol-qng  0£'LE€20LL §
Bunesw pieoq €00z ‘€z IUdy Jo} syoeus / sabesarag  £002/€2/Y0 89°/2 soIneg 990D JoH piIdey O
€002 Iudy - seolues wesjs eualy  €00Z/0€/70 1696822 S}OM 2lignd Joidag Aunop usy O
€002 IudY - S9OIAISS WES)S JB)USD PuBID  £002Z/0E/Y0 96°'101°'62 SHI0M 2lland Joideg Aunoo sy O
€002 |udy - seoiuss wesys jemAys  £002/0E/70 0L8LY'L SHIOM dlgnd jJo ideg Aunop ey O
liosAed £0/20/50 404 quU0D d9kojdwe - 26 ssebeuBw LIWPY  £002/20/S0 00091 /G - uojesodiod JuswameH VWOl O
llosAed €0/20/50 10} sqUIU0D da/ojdwa/sakoidwa - Y1.0p SJBw uwpy  £002/20/G0 00°0¥2 V10V - uojesodioD Juswainey YNOI o)
€002 |HdY - 18)usD puBlS) JOj SBOIAIBS JOMBS pue JBJeM  €00Z/¥2/Y0  LZ2'60V'E Jainseal| Ao spidey puels O
€002 |udy - BUBIY 1O} SBOIAIBS JBJBM,  €£002/L0/SO0 6LVl Jainseas| AyO spidey puers O
€002 IudY - BUBIY JO) SBOIAISS JOMSS pue Jalep  €002/S2/¥0  69'€L2T Janseas) Ao spidey puess O
€002 Iudy - BUBIY JO} SBOIAISS [BOMOR]T €£002/82/Y0  89°.9G°GE ABiaug siawnsuoy O
€002 IudY - Y[emAXS Joj saOIAISS [BOMIOBIT  €002/S2/P0  91°229°L ABisug siewnsuoy O
¥0/S2/¥-€0/52/v - W.L$ 151y Aoljod Ayjiqen| s1@oyjo pue sio0allQ  £002/€2/70 00°009°LL A9S JWUN XSy Jaybejie runypy O
$99IAI9G [eosi4 A)1D Aq paplwqgng Sa210AU|
Jabeuep yosfoid Aq papiwiqng S8dj0AU| - [eJ01-qNS  $E°G6E'ELE'E $
€002 |udy - seonues Juswabeuew joafold  £00Z/0€/0 00°08+'v1 H 8jeq ‘siswwiog 0
£00Z ‘0€ - ¥} Iudy - Buidwnp jos psjeulwejuod  £002/0€/+0 12°922'2 lilypue] Ajuno) emelo o)
€002 |udy - seoines aseyd uononasuod  €002/20/S0 €L'vel'el ou| syueynsuo Bunsa] sjeusiepy 0
£002 Judy - sBuneaw 7 Buynsuod wesAs Alundeg  £002/20/S0 00°009 sisAg undag / a4 ‘1ebuljieg © Ausp o)
€002 |udy - seolues Juswabeuew sfold  €002/0€/70  05°299°L ou| buginsuop Aeio 4 D
6C # JuswAed ssaiboud Joj abeulejy  €00Z/0€/¥0  00°680'V8 JUNOJOY bBUIBISY WW/O OM-¥O O
|eaujoae / Auuosew / [esausb - uononysuo) 62 # jwd ssaibold  €£002/0€/¥0 00°€96'958'€ $ SIMUBA JUlOP Y JUnH - }pJey3 0
Jabeue j03foid Aq papiugng S3210AU]
PoAIad3l S92IAI3S [ paldinboe sjeusjew Jo uopdasag ajeq unowy o9Aed
9210AU|

Aoljod Buideaxpjoog juauing ayy Aq pazuoyiny Se ‘€002 ‘1 AeN uo JuswAhed 10} passadoid S9910AU| JO ISIT]
ALIMOHLNY VNIAUV / NOLLNIANOOD ALNNOD LN3IM - SAIdVY ANVYO



sasuadxe uononiisuoa-uou / Bupesadp =
sasuadxa paje|al UoONISU0D =

£00Z€2¥0 Ml six'gohedojsauteed
spung fuoyiny wouj JuswAhed 10§ papIwIgNS SadI0AU| Je}ol 1272826l

JUNO22Y UOHONIISUOD WO JudwAed JO) PARIWIGNS SIIOAU] |eJ0L  £0'785°S9L

$
3uno2oy BupesadQ woiy JuswAhed J0) papIIGNS SAJIOAU] [BJ01  8LOVZ 2LZ $
$
$

SeoIAIag [B9SId AND AQ Papiugng Sa010AU| - |€J01-NS 8L OVZ LT

£00Z Ae| - JoBeuewW dAjRASIUILPE 0} S)yoUSq oUBINSU|  €00Z/SL/V0  SO'8LC yiesH Ajuoud
£00Z YOIB| - 1S]USD PUBIS) 10} SSIAISS [BOLIDBIT  €002/L0//0  €L'ELL'ST ABiau3 ssewnsuo)

€002 ‘9l udy ybnoiy seoimas Buideaxioog  €£00Z/L2/0  00°6LL'L dT1 Jaues ausag

¥002/£2/S0 - €002/EZ/SO @ouBINSU Uonesuadwod S 00 €00Z/60//0  00°0EL $ Auedwog pun Jusprooy

sadIMag [eoasly A1) AQ pspiwgng S8o10Au|

1obeuep J09foid Aq papiwqgng Sadl0AU| - [€JOL-GNS  £0'8S'SIL $

€002 Yole - seouas ubisep 3844 £002/L L/Y0 z8'CL6'Y 3v aAIssaiboug
€002 ‘L1 - | |udy - Burdwnp los pajeulweluod  £00Z/21L/40 9€°.22'¢ llypue] Auno emeno
£002/90/¥0 nuy) sabieyd suoyd se)n| |90 seAljejussaldel SJBUMO  £002/90/70 8e’Lcl SUOEJIUNWIWOD |S)XSN
G # JuawAed - J8JUaD UOHUBAUOY 10} SWaJSAS AJunoss e|dyINN £00Z/¥1/Y0 21'850°'021L Aunoag sjeispin
€00 UoJel - sedlales aseyd uononnsuod  €00Z/91L/40 GE'9Z0°LL ou| syueynsuo) Bunsa) sieusien
Bunqeo Jaqy 7 J1oddoo - oafoid Buijges aunonuselu]  £002/12/¥0 00'8.L'0z $ ou| eys|Az-uska
J9beuepy j99floid Aq payiuigng SaoloAu|
PaAIa23l1 S321A13S | palinboe sjeusjew jo uonduosaq ajeqg junowy EEYCF
9210AU|

Aoljod Buidesyyoog juaung ayy Aq pazuoyiny se ‘g0z ‘gz IMdy UO JuswAed 10) passa00.g S9I0AU] JO ISIT
ALIRMOHLNY VNIAUV / NOILNIANOD ALNNOD LN3IXM - SAIdVY ANVYDO

o
0

0000

(CHORONSNONS)



VAN ANDEL

ARENA

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED APRIL 30, 2003

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Bob Johnson

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity

Item Vl.c.ii.



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2003

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT INCOME
ANCILLARY INCOME

TOTAL EVENT INCOME

TOTAL OTHER INCOME
TOTAL INCOME

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE

FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS

BOX OFFICE
LUXURY SEATING
SKYWALK ADMIN
OVERHEAD

TOTAL INDIRECT EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

LESS ALLOCATION FOR CAPITAL REPLACEMENT

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER CAPITAL

Comments:

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE

134 15 149 126 23
676,144 104,600 780,744 772,050 8,694
1,113,992 199,864 1,313,856 1,124,723 189,133
1,267,477 222,974 1,490,451 1,302,948 187,503
2,381,469 422,838 2,804,307 2,427,671 376,636
1,592,365 283,400 1,875,765 1,915,000 (39,235)
3,973,834 706,238 4,680,072 4,342,671 337,401
88,868 14,954 103,822 91,525 (12,297)
119,247 24,946 144,193 166,900 22,707
165,922 30,900 196,822 173,800 (23,022)
954,549 186,158 1,140,707 1,081,652 (59.,055)
100,051 16,400 116,451 118,100 1,649
106,233 16,260 122,493 116,530 (6,963)
29,302 4,833 34,135 36,700 2,565
1,063,489 205,153 1,268,642 1,317,317 48,675
2,627,661 499,604 3,127,265 3,102,524 (24,741)
1,346,173 206,634 1,562,807 1,240,147 312,660
203,271 74,400 277,671 368,700 91,029
1,142,902 132,234 1,275,136 871,447 403,689

The Van Andel Arena performed better than the original budgeted
expectations. The Arena continues to perform very strong for the fiscal
year, and the final two months look to continue that success for a net
revenue above expenses in excess of $1.5 million for the fiscal year.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED APRIL 30, 2003

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending
and the YTD ending June 30, 2003, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH April April April
Actual Budget FY 2002
Number of Events 15 12
Attendance 56,595 83,750
Direct Event Income $123,690 $65,311 $80,866
Ancillary Income 76,104 77,535 116,180
Other Income 166,919 159,584 140,268
Indirect Expenses (270,695) (258,834) (277,681)
Net Income $96,018 $43,596 $59,633
YTD YTD 2003 YTD 2003 YTD 2002
Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 134 121
Attendance 676,144 741,950
Direct Event Income $1,113,992 $1,016,268 $1,057,696
Ancillary Income 1,267,477 1,226,863 1,329,188
Other Income 1,692,365 1,595,840 1,507,925
Indirect Expenses (2,627,661) (2,587,450) (2,591,077)
Net Income $1,346,173 $1,251,521 $1,303,732
Less Capital ($203,271) ($235,700) ($69,215)
Net Income after Capital $1,549,444 $1,487,221 $1,372,947

EVENT INCOME

Event income came in better than expected due to the very successful Def Lepard concert
and hosting two Griffins playoff games that are not budgeted

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in at expected levels for the month.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in slightly higher than budget.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
" PERIOD ENDING 04/30/03

----------------- CURRENT - - == === = = oo e e meen cmmmec e e e c¥ T mmmmmmmcccomamawan
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 142,695 114,017 135,577 1,693,193 1,604,280 1,640,824
SERVICES INCOME <19,005> <48,706> <54,712> <579,201> <588,012> <583,128>
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 123,690 65,311 80,866 1,113,992 1,016,268 1,057,696
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 60,213 62,807 99,048 1,044,811 971,703 1,057,660
NOVELTY 11,270 9,030 12,512 180,082 212,780 230,183
OTHER ANCILLARY 4,620 5,698 4,620 42,584 42,380 41,345
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 76,104 77,535 116,180 1,267,477 1,226,863 1,329,188
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 199,794 142,846 197,046 2,381,469 2,243,131 2,386,885
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 166,919 159,584 140,268 1,592,365 1,595,840 1,507,925
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 366,713 302,430 337,314 3,973,834 3,838,971 3,894,810
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 7,407 7,626 6,255 88,868 76,260 73,729
FINANCE 11,682 13,908 12,437 119,247 139,080 133,416
MARKETING 18,781 14,779 13,497 165,922 146,900 158,978
LUXURY SEATING 8,926 9,710 7,927 106,233 97,100 87,042
OPERATIONS 98,168 90,135 95,049 954,549 901,350 898,517
BOX OFFICE 10,903 9,842 7,158 100,051 98,420 91,590
SKYWALK ADMINISTRATION 2,845 3,058 3,045 29,302 30,580 28,869
OVERHEAD 111,983 109,776 132,314 1,063,489 1,097,760 1,118,936
INDIRECT EXPENSES 270,695 258,834 277,681 2,627,661 2,587,450 2,591,077
NET OPERATING INCOME 96,018 43,596 59,633 1,346,173 1,251,521 1,303,733
OTHER EXPENSES
OTHER EXPENSE (INCOME) 0 0 0 203,271 0 69,215
OTHER EXPENSES 0 0 0 203,271 0 69,215
NET INCOME (LOSS) 96,018 43,596 59,633 1,142,902 1,251,521 1,234,518

[IRIS=SWESSSSS AIISSSSUISSS=nT RSSSoIopoms=s =I=S=s=xzmpmass SSITTSSTSSTIESET CoossSssonszas



VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 04/30/03

---------------- CURRENT-v-eeecnrccccancne cocooce-uac---YEAR TO DATE--------sv---
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed 39,784 0 19,052 319,884 0 291,208
Sponsorship Income 0 [+] 0 0 0 37,000
Labor Billed 2,160 2,710 2,070 17,032 19,220 19,418
Changeover Setup Billed 22,588 15,200 20,252 120,333 101,250 129,162
Stagehands Billed 54,087 61,500 56,228 450,883 365,500 410,225
Security Billed 16,386 8,550 19,306 145,510 112,600 175,839
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 17,060 10,150 9,108 121,464 104,250 129,896
Box Office Billed 387 400 452 8,880 11,950 11,958
Ticketing Service Billed 12,616 7,000 18,866 152,308 152,750 202,448
City Police Fire Billed 3,493 1,008 1,232 14,161 9,072 11,504
EMT Medical Billed 2,687 850 2,938 23,892 9,075 23,835
Production Materials Billed 4} 0 0 0 ] 205
Cleaning Billed 8,466 11,600 10,560 96,232 101,200 111,993
Insurance Billed 0 0 0 455 0 2,592
Group Sales Commissions Billed 406 0 0 5,565 0 2,891
Telephone Billed 1,760 1,075 2,385 27,680 20,185 24,045
Equipment Rental Billed 0 0 0 770 0 0
Damages Billed 0 0 [¢] 150 0 Q
Other Production Billed 41,804 4,000 28,039 353,103 173,250 275,937
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 223,685 124,043 190,487 1,858,302 1,180,302 1,860,154
Advertising Expense 28,237 0 19,052 299,649 [} 319,846
Sponsorship Expenses 0 0 0 0 0 2,800
Labor Wages 1,836 2,304 1,760 14,477 17,012 - 16,505
Contracted Changeover Setup Expense 28,381 27,658 41,730 254,856 216,867 266,087
Stagehand Wages 51,761 61,388 53,078 473,846 414,021 437,001
Contracted Security Expense 20,136 14,700 29,846 249,934 181,230 252,838
Contracted Ushers & T/T Expense 25,910 23,810 26,804 286,147 255,000 265,375
Ticket Sellers Wages 329 0 384 7,548 0 9,888
Ticket Service Charge Expense 8,558 7,000 7,353 140,601 177,500 179,467
City Police Fire Expense 3,493 1,008 1,232 14,937 11,822 10,104
EMT Medical Expense 2,582 2,087 3,504 30,629 21,906 42,150
Contracted Cleaning Expense 23,725 28,645 34,568 293,289 294,906 293,054
Insurance Expense 0 0 0 11,797 0 9,219
Allocated Telephone Expense 587 149 575 8,231 5,020 5,920
Production Expense 47,157 4,000 25,314 351,560 173,030 333,028
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 242,690 172,749 245,199 2,437,503 1,768,314 2,443,282
NET SERVICE INCOME <19,005> <48,706> <54, 712> <579,201> <588,012> <583,128>



VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PERIOD ENDING 04/30/03

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
CASH
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
PREPAID EXPENSES

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
DEFERRED INCOME
ADVANCED TIX SALES & DEPOSITS

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

EQUITY
FUNDS REMITTED
FUNDING RECEIVED
RETAINED EARNINGS
NET INCOME (LOSS)

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

4,722,974
1,784,276
125,540

6,632,790

770,809
489,453
1,091,640
2,470,201

<1,668,275>
511,957
1,824,109
1,142,895

6,632,790

ssszsnszssnax



VAN ANDEL ARENA
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 04/30/03

TWRZITTYSEINER ITTIESTIIIREST

S=Essanszsass

----------------- CURRENT- = ===~~~ =cmmcmemae moameacee oo oo YTDem=ccecemccanecccan-
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Salaries Administration 45,393 47,841 40,669 466,871 478,410 426,742
Part-Time 7,428 3,003 7,223 65,341 29,140 63,474
Wages-Trade 75,510 75,288 73,994 708,553 752,850 665,648
Auto Allowance 777 4] o} 3,885 0 [}
Auto Expense 0 810 777 3,885 8,100 7,525
Taxes & Benefits 34,828 31,364 26,909 307,342 313,640 246,159
Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <67,974> <71,668> <65,883> <643,988> <716,680> <556, 085>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 95,963 86,635 83,688 911,890 865,460 853,463
Contracted Security 15,667 17,083 16,120 179,446 170,830 163,127
Contracted Cleaning 2,098 2,167 2,017 20,980 21,670 20,174
Other Contracted Services 314 300 314 3,240 3,000 3,350
Travel & Entertainment 281 442 393 8,540 4,420 8,841
Corporate Travel 0 625 0 3,395 6,250 1,884
Meetings & Conventions 22 1,083 358 6,171 10,830 8,414
Dues & Subscriptions 307 108 139 3,360 1,080 3,083
Employee Training 0 1,000 (4] 1,464 10,000 2,501
Miscellaneous Expense 0 0 0 62 1] 0
Computer Expense 4,594 5,417 2,328 37,401 54,170 79,025
Professional Fees 1,500 2,167 3,589 24,210 21,670 25,331
Marketing & Advertising 10,261 8,250 5,231 100,168 82,500 84,817
Box Office Expenses <20> 0 <1,465> 749 4] 172
Small Equipment 2,125 0 0 3,098 0 1,687
Trash Removal 2,383 1,250 2,024 18,990 12,500 14,279
Equipment Rental 1,822 1,300 1,383 15,034 13,000 14,417
Landscaping 0 292 6,696 0 2,920 10,257
Exterminating 248 333 248 2,228 3,330 2,475
Cleaning 0 450 0 8,739 4,500 2,810
Safety Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 248
Repairs & Maintenance 11,729 10,666 12,967 99,808 106,660 74,290
Supplies 16,043 15,091 13,708 159,853 150,910 180,397
Bank Service Charges 1,107 1,000 1,411 7,998 10,000 11,842
Insurance 12,424 11,967 9,183 124,152 119,670 109,426
Licenses & Fees 0 0 [ 69 0 0
Other Taxes 0 300 [+} 0 3,000 69
Printing & Stationary 238 1,917 121 5,644 19,170 5,375
Office Supplies 846 1,000 1,691 11,827 10,000 14,520
Postage 27 1,000 1,142 8,085 10,000 6,790
Parking Expense 1,744 1,592 10 18,046 15,920 16,594
Telephone Long Distance 3,468 4,583 3,061 44,939 45,830 43,878
Utilities 69,660 64,566 65,850 643,297 645,660 635,830
Base Fee 18,956 19,500 18,750 189,563 195,000 187,500
Incentive Fee 0 0 30,000 0 0 30,000
Amortization 0 0 0 0 0 5,737
Common Area Expense <2,523> <2,875> <2,700> <25,985> <28,750> <25,602>
Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <587> <375> <575> <8,798> <3,750> <5,920>
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 174,733 172,199 193,993 1,715,771 1,721,990 1,737,615
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 270,695 258,834 277,681 2,627,661 2,587,450 2,591,077

SIT=IALITISTI mESas-Iosmmo=a=

6



SMG - Van Andel Arena & Grand Center

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Capital Expenditures & Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2003

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
Budget Expended Balance Project Status
Arena
Skywalk Ice Melt System 42,000 20,610 21,390 Closed
Terazzo Floor Repair 38,000 38,000 Delay to F/Y 05
Banquet Room Refurbishment 25,000 25,000 Open
Hydralic Seating Section 70,000 70,000 Delay to F/Y 05
Hockey Glass 20,000 16,750 3,250 Closed
Safety Nets 67,056 (67,056) Closed
Floor Maintenance Equipment 18,500 13,992 4,508 Closed
Lobby Duct Painting 35,000 14,140 20,860 Closed
Security Gate System 120,200 70,723 49,477 Closed
Total Arena 368,700 203,271 165,429
Grand Center
Refinish DeVos Stage Floor 50,000 50,000 Delay to F/Y 05
Cyclorama for DeVos Stage House 12,000 4,528 7,472 Closed
Total Grand Center 62,000 4,528 57472
Grand Total Capital Improvements 430,700 207,798 222,902
MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY
Arena Grand Center Total FY 2002
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,552,014 (245,335) 1,306,679 1,642,788
Benchmark 1,566,545 (359,972) 1,206,573 1,043,839
Excess (14,531) 114,637 100,106 598,949
Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)
Arena Grand Center Total FY 2002
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Base Fee 227475 227,475 454,950 450,000
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,680,072 2,091,554 6,771,626 6,993,519
Benchmark Revenue 4,367,910 1,991,859 6,359,769 5,969,444
Revenue Excess 312,162 99,695 411,857 1,024,075
Incentive Fee ** 62,432 19,939 82,371 206,019
Total SMG Management Fee 289,907 247414 537,321 656,019

** Incentive fee is 20% of the first $1 million in excess, 25% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



GRAND CENTER

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED APRIL 30, 2003

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Bob Johnson

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facliity

Item VI.c.ii.



GRAND CENTER
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2003

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT REVENUE
ANCILLARY REVENUE

TOTAL EVENT REVENUE
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS
EVENT SERVICES
BOX OFFICE
OVERHEAD

TOTAL OPERATING EXP.
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES
CAPITAL

NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER
OPERATING EXPENSES

Comments:

TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE
305 32 337 305 32
414,030 50,350 464,380 449,307 15,073
1,313,675 150,273 1,463,848 1,297,805 166,043
471,928 33,871 505,799 491,054 14,745
1,785,503 184,144 1,969,647 1,788,859 180,788
95,621 26,286 121,907 203,000 (81,093)
1,881,124 210,430 2,091,554 1,991,859 99,695
93,334 11,636 104,970 86,064 (18,906)
131,223 26,391 157,614 142,850 (14,764)
45,539 7,794 53,333 146,847 93,514
342,720 76,156 418,876 480,979 62,103
377,356 68,385 445,741 447,613 1,872
61,419 12,496 73,915 57,425 (16,490)
882,624 222,311 1,104,935 990,049 (114,886)
1,934,215 425,169 2,359,384 2,351,831 (7,557)
(63,090) (214,739) (267,830) (359,972) 92,138
4,528 4,528 62,000 (67,472)
(57,618) (214,739) (272,358) (421,972) 149,610

The Grand Center performed below budgeted expectations for the
month, however, consistent with revised expectations. The final two
months of the fiscal year be slightly below below budget, however,
the Grand Center will end the fiscal year a little over $92,000 ahead

of the original budget




GRAND CENTER
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED APRIL 30, 2003

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending
and the YTD ending June 30, 2003, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH April April April

Actual Budget FY 2002
Number of Events 29 28 40
Attendance 28,134 31,850 39,619
Direct Event Income $147,422 $154,329 $159,274
Ancillary Income 54,896 69,453 73,486
Other Income 13,555 16,917 9,686
Indirect Expenses (225,283) (196,511) (213,558)
Net Income ($9,410) $44,188 $28,888
YTD YTD 2003 YTD 2003 YTD 2002

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 305 270 337
Attendance 414,030 392,157 444,265
Direct Event Income $1,313,575 $1,164,526 $1,324,927
Ancillary Income 471,928 449,904 533,783
Other Income 95,621 169,170 108,552
Indirect Expenses (1,934,214) (1,965,110) (1,787,176)
Net Income ($53,090) ($181,510) $180,086
Less Capital ($4,528) ($47,841)
Net Income after Capital ($57,618) ($181,510) $132,245

EVENT INCOME

Event income came in below budgeted expectations for the month. This is mainly due

to a timing change on events relating to the Women's Show, Opera, and the Spartan Stores
Spring meeting. Events held during the month performed at, or above budget.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in below budget due to same time, as well as, lower than expected
spending on Decorating for the events hosted during the month.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in higher than budget for the month. This was mainly due to an
increase security presence after the fire, and expenses relating to the new DeVos Place
logo.




GRAND CENTER
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 04/30/03

----------------- CURRENT - - ==~ =-==cemmmmmmnmn sacccmmcmmanmeo=oYTD-mcmccmamemmameoacanas
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 141,521 155,200 164,358 1,275,360 1,118,705 1,282,601
SERVICES INCOME 5,902 <871> <5,084> 38,215 45,821 42,326
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 147,422 154,329 159,274 1,313,575 1,164,526 1,324,927
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 12,996 15,613 24,252 162,306 163,395 176,474
NOVELTY 4,990 2,450 5,235 19,551 13,950 35,401
TELECOMMUNICATIONS 0 0 1,085 1,747 o - 8,361
ELECTRICAL 8,130 9,150 6,770 22,978 24,500 32,238
OTHER ANCILLARY 28,780 42,240 36,144 265,346 248,059 281,309
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 54,896 69,453 73,486 471,928 449,904 533,783
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 202,318 223,782 212,760 1,785,503 1,614,430 1,858,710
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 13,555 16,917 9,686 95,621 169,170 108,552
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 215,873 240,699 242,446 1,881,124 1,783,600 1,967,263
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 12,794 7,172 11,722 93,334 71,720 74,112
FINANCE 12,942 11,904 11,413 131,223 119,040 106,629
MARKETING 12,495 12,236 3,428 45,538 122,360 34,140
OPERATIONS 41,011 40,083 42,718 342,720 400,830 427,186
EVENT MANAGEMENT 46,220 37,826 34,853 377,356 378,260 275,593
BOX OFFICE 6,132 4,785 4,828 61,419 47,850 38,082
OVERHEAD 93,690 82,505 104,596 882,624 825,050 831,435
INDIRECT EXPENSES 225,283 196,511 213,558 1,934,214 1,965,110 1,787,176
NET OPERATING INCOME <9,410> 44,188 28,888 <53,090> <181,510> 180,086
OTHER EXPENSES
OTHER EXPENSE (INCOME) o 0 0 4,528 0 47,841
OTHER EXPENSES 0 0 0 4,528 o 47,841
NET INCOME (LOSS) <9,410> 44,188 28,888 <57,618> <181,510> 132,245

mampssosSSsssSes mISosSSaSSSSIz SISIIoSasooDa azgzgxsc=Snos SRSz a=



GRAND CENTER
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 04/30/03

---------------- CURRENT-----=====e=cc===-= ===ws======--~YEAR TO DATE--------=----
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed 26,701 [¢] 6,257 39,864 0 106,472
Stagehands Billed 54,995 29,400 55,227 585, 848 635,800 730,663
Security Billed 8,135 14,520 10,445 76,463 103,050 102,395
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 9,541 8,355 11,908 112,216 117,300 131,867
Box Office Billed 700 1,400 967 16,050 20,400 23,127
Ticketing Service Billed 12,561 12,250 12,281 124,956 138,800 171,369
Utilities Billed [+} [ 0 2,200 0 5,470
City Police Fire Billed 760 0 310 15,523 6,274 19,825
Traffic Control Billed 676 950 1,206 11,561 17,170 18,838
EMT Medical Billed 2,215 2,150 2,285 19,448 18,695 21,809
Cleaning Billed 0 0 296 378 0 2,770
Insurance Billed 0 0 0 2,049 0 1,042
Group Sales Commissions Billed 0 Q 0 0 0 889
Telephone Billed 5,281 2,330 640 25,609 11,625 11,244
Damages Billed ] (] 0 193 0 71
Other Production Billed 4,960 0 4,253 32,075 0 63,361
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 126,524 71,355 106,075 1,064,432 1,069,114 1,411,212
Advertising Expense 24,163 0 6,257 37,346 0 97,315
Stagehand Wages 53,843 28,519 55,307 566,375 616,735 726,429
Security Wages [¢] 0 0 0 [+] 7,722
Contracted Security Expense 8,135 14,520 10,445 76,469 103,050 94,838
Ushers & T/T Wages 6,679 5,849 8,336 78,551 82,111 92,1307
Ticket Sellers Wages 1,193 1,400 1,026 18,385 16,505 16,532
Ticket Service Charge Expense 5,134 3,413 4,026 35,049 40,598 57,246
City Police Fire Expense 760 0 310 15,218 4,974 19,825
Traffic Control Expense 2,911 3,975 3,110 27,525 33,735 35,972
EMT Medical Expense 1,867 2,150 1,534 14,789 18,695 15,873
Cleaning Wages 10,072 12,400 17,079 120,515 106,890 141,071
Contracted Cleaning Expense 0 0 ] [+] 0 2,083
Insurance Expense [¢] 0 0 1,113 0 844
Allocated Telephone Expense 1,320 0 0 5,226 0 0
Production Expense 4,546 0 3,730 29,658 0 60,830
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 120,623 72,226 111,159 1,026,217 1,023,293 1,368,885
NET SERVICE INCOME 5,902 <871> <5,084> 38,215 45,821 42,326




GRAND CENTER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PERIOD ENDING 04/30/03

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
CASH
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
PREPAID EXPENSES

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
ADVANCED TIX SALES & DEPOSITS

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

EQUITY

FUNDING RECEIVED
RETAINED EARNINGS
NET INCOME (LOSS)

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

1,890,636
426,304
67,539

2,384,479

423,593
72,900
493,564

499,191
952,849
<57,618>

2,384,479



GRAND CENTER
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 04/30/03

SSoossSssssDSc eassSSSSSISSSsS S

----------------- CURRENT------=-=-ccc-ec-s ecomcnmoncccccae-oo-YTD---~-ccceccccconaana-

ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR

Salaries Administration 45,640 46,990 41,200 469,453 469,900 409,424
Part-Time 13,376 11,275 15,999 129,813 112,750 134,283
Wages-Trade 77,551 95,565 79,765 777,204 955,650 919,671
Auto Allowance 1,521 1,816 0 15,208 18,160 0
Auto Expense 0 0 1,521 (4] 0 14,858
Taxes & Benefits 33,092 30,108 26,334 303,598 301,080 276,529
Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <86,027> <110,163> <92,442> <926,479> <1,101,630> <1,087,893>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 85,154 75,591 72,377 768,797 755,910 666,872
Contracted Security 14,428 5,000 4,239 63,074 50,000 44,784
Other Contracted Services 186 183 186 1,904 1,830 1,669
Travel & Entertainment 582 792 574 4,106 7,920 5,404
Corporate Travel 0 333 0 651 3,330 1,884
Meetings & Conventions 9 1,613 215 9,872 16,130 9,396
Dues & Subscriptions 108 160 789 953 1,600 1,326
Employee Training 0 833 0 430 8,330 459
Miscellaneous Expense 0 0 0 0 [+} 66
Computer Expense 5,053 5,417 2,566 36,851 54,170 30,507
Professional Fees 7,223 1,730 4,516 32,511 17,300 17,023
Marketing & Advertising 1,879 1,094 891 12,070 10,940 10,223
Box Office Expenses 40 0 14 591 0 509
Trash Removal 6,701 2,800 1,017 17,779 28,000 11,458
Equipment Rental 486 375 120 5,323 3,750 2,671
Snow Removal 0 0 0 0 0 169
Exterminating 375 368 375 3,675 3,680 4,058
Cleaning 0 1,250 0 0 12,500 613
Construction Costs 0 0 0 2,511 0 1,350
Repairs & Maintenance 4,726 9,013 12,941 64,342 90,130 101,522
Supplies 10,422 13,098 8,688 67,477 130,980 77,282
Bank Service Charges 1,144 750 837 8,113 7,500 10,834
Insurance 9,473 8,380 10,889 99,880 83,800 101,030
Other Taxes 0 300 0 0 3,000 0
Printing & Stationary 238 731 216 238 7,310 1,224
office Supplies 537 500 698 5,435 5,000 6,329
Postage 238 200 204 731 2,000 1,138
MARKET RESEARCH 0 0 0 2 0 0
Parking Expense 1,576 1,500 3,152 14,656 15,000 19,743
Telephone Long Distance 2,559 2,000 6,102 29,296 20,000 26,837
Utilities 54,511 43,000 41,667 499,191 430,000 416,946
Base Fee 18,956 19,500 18,750 189,562 195,000 187,500
Incentive Fee 0 0 21,535 0 0 26,350
Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <1,320> 0 ] <5,808> 0 0
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 140,130 120,920 141,181 1,165,417 1,209,200 1,120,304
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 225,283 196,511 213,558 1,934,214 1,965,110 1,787,176




SMG - Van Andel Arena & Grand Center

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Capital Expenditures & Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2003

CAPITAL IMPROYVEMENTS
Budget Expended Balance Project Status
Arena
Skywalk Ice Melt System 42,000 20,610 21,390 Closed
Terazzo Floor Repair 38,000 38,000 Delay to F/Y 05
Banquet Room Refurbishment 25,000 25,000 Open
Hydralic Seating Section 70,000 70,000 Delay to F/Y 05
Hockey Glass 20,000 16,750 3,250 Closed
Safety Nets 67,056 (67,056) Closed
Floor Maintenance Equipment 18,500 13,992 4,508 Closed
Lobby Duct Painting 35,000 14,140 20,860 Closed
Security Gate System 120,200 70,723 49,477 Closed
Total Arena 368,700 203,271 165,429
Grand Center
Refinish DeVos Stage Floor 50,000 50,000 Delay to F/Y 05
Cyclorama for DeVos Stage House 12,000 4,528 7,472 Closed
Total Grand Center 62,000 4,528 57,472
Grand Total Capital Improvements 430,700 207,798 222,902
MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY
Arena Grand Center Total FY 2002
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,552,014 (245,335) 1,306,679 1,642,788
Benchmark 1,566,545 (359,972) 1,206,573 1,043,839
Excess (14,531) 114,637 100,106 598,949
Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)
Arena Grand Center Total FY 2002
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Base Fee 227,475 227,475 454,950 450,000
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,680,072 2,091,554 6,771,626 6,993,519
Benchmark Revenue 4,367,910 1,991,859 6,359,769 5,969,444
Revenue Excess 312,162 99,695 411,857 1,024,075
Incentive Fee ** 62,432 19,939 82,371 206,019
Total SMG Management Fee 289,907 247,414 537,321 656,019

** Incentive fee is 20% of the first §1 million in excess, 25% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



Item VI.c.iii.

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ten Months Ended April 30, 2003

i BEENE GARTER LLP



ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Grand Rapids, Michigan

We have compiled the accompanying statements of net assets and cash receipts and
disbursements - budget to actual for the operating account and construction accounts of the Grand
Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority for the ten months ended April 30, 2003, in
accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services issued by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. These statements do not include the cash
receipts and disbursements of the Van Andel Arena and Grand Center which are operated by the
Authority. The financial statements presented have been prepared on the cash basis of

accounting, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

A compilation is limited to presenting in the form of financial statements information that is the
representation of management. We have not audited or reviewed the accompanying financial
statements and, accordingly, do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on them.

Management has elected to omit substantially all of the disclosures ordinarily included in financial
statements prepared on the cash basis of accounting. if the omitted disclosures were included in
the financial statements, they might influence the user's conclusions about the Authority’s cash
receipts and disbursements. Accordingly, these financial statements are not designed for those
who are not informed about such matters.

May 6, 2003
Grand Rapids, Michigan

BEENE GARTER LLP

50 MONROE NW
F 616.235.5285
SUITE 600

T 616.235.5200

Ry 1.800.824.7882
MI1CHIGAN BusINESS ADVISORS » CPAs > FINANCIAL SERVICES

49503-2679 INTERNATIONALLY KNOWN AS MOORE STEPHENS BEENE GARTER PLC www.beenegarter.com



%

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E

i" BEENE GARTER LLP



Statement A

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Equivalents - Authority
Cash and Equivalents - Facility
Receivables, Net
Prepaid Expenses
Contract Rights
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Cabital Assets:
Construction in Progress

Total Noncurrent Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses
Advance Ticket Sales
Advance Deposits
Deferred Facility Income

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets

Fund Balance

TOTAL NET ASSETS

" BEENE GARTER LLP

Statement of Net Assets

April 30, 2003
CONSTRUCTION OPERATING TOTAL

44,818,338 1,614,227 $ 46,433,065

- 3,620,013 3,620,013

- 1,232,040 1,232,040

- 117,750 117,750

- 5,737 5,737

44,818,838 6,589,767 51,408,605
56,229,162 3,507 56,232,669
56,229,162 3,507 56,232,669
101,048,000 6,593,274 107,641,274

- 643,033 643,033

- 418,296 418,296

- 1,079,206 1,079,206

- 202,952 202,952

- 441,506 441,506

- 2,784,993 2,784,993

56,229,162 3,507 56,232,669
44,818,838 3,804,774 48623612
101,048,000 $ 3,808,281 $ 104,856,281

See accountants' report



Statement B

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Receipts and Disbursements - Budget to Actual (Operations)
From July 1, 2002 to April 30, 2003

OPERATING ACCOUNT
Facilities Operations Capital Replacement
Budget Actual Budget Actual
RECEIPTS
Facility Operations $ 2170975 $ 1668275 § - $ -
Land Lease 107,772 330,669 - -
Interest on Investments 34,880 16,923 25,120 9,938
Capital Reptacement Reserve Transfer 184,418 - (184,418) -
Miscelianeous Revenue - 6,007 - -
TOTAL RECEIPTS 2,498,045 2,021,873 (159,298) 9,938
DISBURSEMENTS
Accounting / Auditing Services 25,635 15,700 - -
Insurance - Property and Liability 33,050 3,999 - -
Legal Services 33,550 24,302 - -
Other Contractual Services 43,000 36,984 - -
Facility Management Fees - 224,228 - -
Meeting Expense 890 579 - -
Supplies 1,350 221 - -
Transfer to Construction Account 1,000,000 1,000,000 - ~
Sub-total Service Disbursements 1,137,475 1,306,013 - -
Electricity 727,000 601,750 - -
Steam 471,000 439,201 - -
Water and Sewer 92,800 57,089 - -
Sub-total Utility Disbursements 1,290,800 1,098,040 - -
Building Additions and Improvements - - 380,200 -
Facility Equipment Acquisition - - 50,500 -
Sub-total Capital Disbursements - - 430,700 -
Employee Wages 52,240 42,000 - -
Employee Benefits 17,530 13,546 - -
Sub-total Payroll Disbursements 69,770 55,546 - -
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 2,498,045 2,459,599 430,700 -
Excess / (Deficit) of Funds $ - 3 (437,726) $ (589,998) $ 9,938
Total Net Assets - Beginning of Year 3,000,000 2,418,567 1,236,069 1,817,502
Total Net Assets - End of Period $ 3,000,000 $ 1,980,841 $ 646,071 $ 1,827,440
See Comments See Comments
1and 2 1and 2

Comment 1: Facilities Operations and Capital Replacement budgets were approved by the GR-KC Convention / Arena
Authority at its regularly scheduled meeting on June 26, 2002.

Comment 2: Facilities Operations and Capital Replacement columns include receipts and disbursements processed by the
C/AA. SMG receipts and disbursements are reported separately in the Van Andel Arena and Grand Center
financial statements prepared by SMG.

See accountants’ report

9 BEENE GARTER LLP



Statement C

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Receipts and Disbursements - Budget to Actual (Construction)
From July 1, 2002 to April 30, 2003

RECEIPTS
State of Michigan
City / County Bldg Authority Capital Contrib.
Transfer from Operating Fund
Interest on Investments
TOTAL RECEIPTS

DISBURSEMENTS
Architectural and Engineering Services
Construction Material Testing
Construction - GMP Contractor
Sub-total Contractor Disbursements

Insurance - Property / Liability
Legal Services
Cwner's Representatives
Other Contractual Services
Sub-total Service Disbursements

Advertising / Promotion / Publicity
Supplies
Postage / Express
Telephone
Sub-total Supplies Disbursements

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

Excess / (Deficit) of Funds

Total Net Assets - Beginning of Year
Total Net Assets - End of Period

CONSTRUCTION ACCOUNT
Monroe Ave Relocation Convention Center Construction
Budget Actual Budget Actual

$ - $ - $ 2,138,974 $ -
3,071,036 14,574 52,381,302 56,050,426
- - 1,000,000 1,000,000
55,000 44,358 698,455 680.487
3,126,036 58,932 56,218,731 57,730,912
1,744,046 - 4,000,000 2,067.716
- - 600,000 262,419
1,133,925 14,560 47,063,549 52,871,271
2,877,971 14,560 51,663,549 55,201,406
- - 53,338 77.660
10,000 202 10,000 6 207
- - 270,870 225353
238,065 - 4,215,724 524 731
248,065 202 4,549,932 833,951

- - 2,500 -

- - 500 -

- - 150 -
- - 2,100 1,797
- - 5,250 1,797
3,126,036 14,762 56,218,731 56,037,154
$ - $ 44,170 $ - $ 1,693,758
9,206,790 9,206,790 90,103,282 90,103,282
$ 9,206,790 $ 9,250,960 $ 90,103,282 $ 91,797,040

See Comment See Comment

Comment: Convention Center Construction budget was approved by the Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention / Arena Authority at its regularly scheduled meeting on June 26, 2002.

See accountants’ report

" BEENE GARTER LLP



Item VI.c.iv,

FISCAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT
MEMORANDUM

TO: Steve Heacock
Chair Convention/Arena Authority

FROM: Robert White Q7
Fiscal Services Director

SUBJECT: Directors and Officers Insurance Coverage
"Additional Coverage"

DATE: May 8, 2003

On April 17th, the Finance Committee of the Convention/Arena Authority was presented with a
recommended renewal of the directors and officers liability insurance, policy. Prior policies
included a $10 million coverage limit. Continuing coverage, under this policy limitation, was
solicited by the County Risk Management Office. One renewal policy with a $7 million
limitation was received. This policy renewal was reviewed and previously approved by the
Finance Committee.

Attached you will find a recent communication (April 25, 2003) from the representative of
Arthur J. Gallagher to the attention of Phil VanDyke (County Risk Manager). This
communication includes a quotation, for the remaining $3 million excess coverage, which would
bring total combined policy limits to the original $10 million, as originally solicited by the
Convention/ Arena Authority. This policy was quoted at $6,000 plus 2.5% surplus line tax and
possibly a State fee ($100). After conferring with the County's Risk Manager and the Chair of
the CAA Finance Commiittee, I did commit on behalf of the Authority to this policy.

I will submit the attached material to the Finance Committee of the Convention/Arena Authority
at its meeting of May 15th, for formal approval. I will be available if there are any questions
concerning this memo.



h |
%PR-25-03 01:58PM FROM~ARTHUR J GALLAGHER +96162330923 T-258 P.01/05 F-997

G
L/ 4

ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO. OF MICHIGAN, INC.

IMPORTANT MESSAGE: THis MESSAGE IS INTENDED ONLY FOR THE USE OF THE INDIVIDUAL OR ENTITY TO WHICR THIS IS ADORESSED AND MAY CONTAIN
INFORMATION THAT IS PRIVILEGED, CONFIDENTIAL, AND EXEMPT FROM DISCLOSURE UNDER APPLICABLE LAW. IF THE READER IS NOT THE INTENDED RECIPIENY OR THE
EMPLOYEE OR AGENT RESPONSIBLE FOR DELIVERING THIS MESSAGE YO THE INTENDED RECIPIENT, YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT ANY DISSEMINATION, DISTRIBUTION OR
COPYING OF THIS COMMUNICATION IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED. IF YOU HAVE RECEIVED THIS COMMUNICATION IN ERROR, PLEASE NOTIFY US BY TELEPHONE AND RETURN THE
ORIGINAL COMMUNICATION TO US AT THE ADDRESS SHOWN TO THE LEFT VIA THE UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE. THANK YOU.

Daite; Friday, April 25, 2003
To: Phil Van Dyke
County of Kent
Fax# (616)336-3598
From: _Patricia E. Klatt, CISR
(616) 233-0916

# Pages being transmitted (incl. cover page): 5§

Message / Comments:

Re:  County of Kent
D & O Excess Liability Quote

Dear Phil:

Believe it or not, we were able 1o get you a quote for Excess D & O coverage over your
current $7,000,000 limit. The coverge is quoted through Royal Surplus Lines Insurance
Company which is a non-admitted carrier with an A- Best Rating. The premium
indication is subject to the acceptable completion of various items found at the end of the
following proposal.

The premium indication is $6,000 plus 2.5% surplus lines tax and possibly a state fee. 1
could not find out today if there would be a fee or not. Typically fees run around $100 or
SO.

Please take a minute to look over the following and let us know your thoughts. Iam also
faxing you an “Authorization to Bind” form. We will need to get back to the carrier
ASAP on whether or not we want the coverage. Thanking you in advance for your
prompt response.

e

The Waters Building, 161 Ottawa N.W., Suite 112, Grand Rapids, Ml 49503-2799
Phone: 616-233-0910 | Fax: 616-233-0923



|

AP??.-ZS-M 01:58PM  FROM-ARTHUR J GALLAGHER +96162330923 T-258 P.02/05 F-997

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena
Authority
“

EXCESS DIRECTORS’ & OFFICERS’ LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE
Policy Period: 04/25/03 to 04/25/04
Company: Royal Surplus Lines Insurance Company

A.M. Best’s Rating A-
(Edition Date):

Admitted/Non-admitted: | Non-Admitted L
Limits: $3,000,000 .
In Excess of $7,000,000
Insuring Agreements:

Coverage A . Directors’ & Officers’ Liability
. Pay on behalf of the Directors & Officers for losses
arising from any claim by reason of any wrongful act
Coverage B . Corporate Reimbursement
o Pay on behalf of the company for losses arising

from any claim by reason of any wrongful act, but
only when the company is required or permitted to
Indemnify the Directors & Officers

Retentions: $0 Each director or officer, subject to
$0 Aggregate
$0 Corporate Reimbursement
Coverage: . Defense Costs included in Limits of Liability
. Worldwide Coverage Territory
_ Endorsements: . Nuclear Energy Liability Exclusion
3 Pending and Prior Litigation Exclusion
o Employment Practices Endorsement
o Marital Estate Exclusion
. Securities Activities Exclusion
. Spousal Liability Coverage
. Outside Directorship Endorsement (Charitable)

RICLIENTSWKENTCOUNWS-04\D and O 4-03 to D4\Encess O h O Propozal.dec



APR=25-03 01:56PM  FROM-ARTHUR J GALLAGHER +96162330923 T-258  P.03/05 F-997

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena

Authority
M
o Service Of Suit Clause
. Schedule of Underlying

o Renewal Wording Exclusion
° Excess Policy Endorsement
) Captive Insurance Company Exclusion (can be

deleted subject to a warranty letter stating the
Insured does not now or intends to form in the near
future a captive)

. Commissions Exclusion (can be deleted subject to
completion of a Payments/Commissions
Questionnaire)

Indication: $6,000 Plus 2.5% tax

Quote Subject To: 1. Acceptable complted, signed and dated original
Royal Non-profit Application

2. Copy of underlying binder

3. Complete copy of the underlying policy once
available

RACLIENTS\KENTCOUNW3-04\D and O 4-03 (o OS\EXcess £ n O proposat.doc



Item Vl.c.v.

fio THe Roep T e
THE RIGHT PLACE PROGRAM

| A REGIONAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION

I CHAIR
Danny R. Gaydou

The Grand Rapids Press March 14, 2003

VICE-CHAIR
David L.Van Andel

SR Mayor John J. Logie, Chairman
TREASURER

Kevin . Kabat Convention-Arena Authority
Fifth Third Bank - Western Michigan w arner N Orcross an d Ju d d
sy sorn. 111 Lyon NW

John Brown

G.R.Area Chamber of Commerce Rc: Hcartside Parklng Stlldy

Joseph A. Davio
Comerica Bank

Daryl Delabbio
Kent County

Dear Mayor Logie:

po ke w1 have helped to spearhead a public-private partnership to examine parking,
Jim Dunlzp transportation and access issues in the Heartside neighborhood. In fact, various
HuningonRationalBank ¢ty staff and in particular, Ms. Pam Ritsema have been valuable contributors to

Lawrence E. Erhardt, Sr.

fhadt onsuction ompany. - @dVANCing the process to where we are currently.

Edward E. Frederick

BuetlrRelty nc I am requesting that the Authority help fund the initiative in the amount of

James P. Hackett

Steelcase Inc. $50,000 and to assist your deliberations, enclosed you will find information
Eina anka describing our tasks. I am forwarding this letter of request and the attachments to
I you based upon a conversation with the Authority staff. If necessary, I will be
HE H Metal Source happy to meet with you, the staff or the Authority to advance the
Richard P Hslinger parking/transportation project and the funding request.

Cynthia A. Havard

Cole's Quaity Foods,Inc Please do not hesitate to contact me if I can be of any further assistance and I look
00 Seimn L forward to your response by the end of the month.

Earl Holton

Meijer, Inc.

Robert L. Hooker

C & H Holdings, LLC

John Jackohoice

Monarch Hydraulics, Inc.

John C. Kennedy
Autocam Corporation

Kurt F.Kimball
City of Grand Rapids

Birgit M. Kiohs
The Right Place Program

William J. Lawrence, Il
Varnum, Riddering, Schmidt & Howlett LLP

Jon G, March
Miller, Johnson, Snell & Cummiskey, P1.C.

Milton W. Rohwer
Frey Foundation

John G. Russell
Consumers Energy Company

Fred Shell
DTE Energy

Daniel W.Terpsma
Standard Federal Bank

111 Pearl Street NW « Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503 « Phone 616 771-0325 + FAX 616 771-0329




HEARTSIDE PARKING AND ACCESS ANALYSIS

March 2003

The View Today....
Development pressures south of Fulton to Wealthy and from Prospect to the US 131

expressway on the west (generally known as the Heartside Neighborhood--see the
attached map) caused several meetings during 2002 to discuss what to do if anything
about the land use changes underway.

Participants (the Stakeholders) in these meetings organized by the Heartside Business
Association and The Right Place, Inc. included representatives from health care (St.
Mary’s and Mary Free Bed), education (Catholic Secondary Schools, Western Michigan
University), entertainment and services (ranging from The Sierra Room to Design +),
residential (Dwelling Place) and developers like Rockford Construction. Public officials
too, participated in these meetings including staff from the Parking Commission, the
Downtown Development Authority, City Planning and the Convention/Arena Authority.

Without exception, all participants agreed that building re-use and new construction infill
of vacant properties was a positive activity. Furthermore, all agreed that these positive
economic development trends should continue and be encouraged.

However, all parties also agreed that development activities would be accompanied by
new automobile parking demands and conflicts unable to be met with existing on and off-
street facilities. Somebody had to do something!

What We Decided To Do-Hire a Consultant....

We wrote a “problem statement” and developed a “Request for Proposals” and solicited
work proposals from recognized parking consultants. Three companies responded two of
which were interviewed and a final selection underway. Assuming public and private
funding commitments can be secured in the next 30 days, a contract with Walker Parking
Consultants will be authorized by the Grand Rapids City Commission. Attached is the
proposed work scope will be completed this year for a cost of approximately $140,000.

Work Products to Be Provided....

*An inventory and several mapping products will be generated of all public and private
parking facilities.

*Stakeholder survey information and analysis relative to parking problems, needs and
demands and opportunities.

*Strategies, recommendations, alternatives for parking and transportation improvements
based upon:

* An analysis of the current and future parking and transportation demand
management conditions in the study area.



e Identification of current parking “problem spots” and strategies and methods for
minimizing or eliminating conflicts.

* An analysis of potential land use infill and its impact on access, parking and
transportation options.

e Plan options identifying how much parking might be needed where it could be
located and when it might need to be available during the next five years.

* Identification of alternative ways to better utilize and provide access to existing
parking and transportation systems.

¢ Identification of options to guide decision-makers for cost effective decisions
about current and future transportation and parking needs in the study area.

Because of the size of the Heartside study area, at least 4 subzones of analysis
information will be provided in an attempt to match solutions and recommendations to
specific geographic problem areas. The participating stakeholders will make the
determination of these areas.

What Do We Need From You?....

As a stakeholder, we need you to continue your involvement throughout the consultant
work preparation process. This means that you or a representative of your company or
institution will be asked to attend periodic progress meetings and provide guidance to the
consultant team.

You will be asked to provide information about parking problems, current and future
needs. The consultants will ask you for information or existing reports that might be
useful to the analysis and recommendation process. We hope you will provide copies of
pertinent information or make it available so that it can be copied.

You will be asked to provide reasonable access to your property and parking facilities so
that the consultants can determine the number of parking spaces, their utilization and
options for improvement. To the fullest extent possible, this activity will be performed
using existing data and aerial mapping, but some inspections and site visits will be
necessary.

We need your financial support. This public and private parking analysis collaboration
will not occur if stakeholder funding is not secured. The City will enter into a contract
with Walker Parking Consultants for the full amount of the study and manage payments
to the consultant. As the City is billed for completed work, the City will bill the
stakeholders and funders of the project for a proportionate share of the contract based
upon a letter of intent from each of the funders. Therefore, a letter of intent committing
your funding contribution for this project will need to be executed.

Finally, we will need your long-term commitment and assistance in implementing the
strategies, actions and recommendations of the parking report. The task is too big for one
entity alone to tackle, but together as this public-private partnership unfolds we all can
benefit while minimizing our financial cost.



The View of Tomorrow....

Heartside has become “the place” where hundreds of new residents call the neighborhood
“their home.” Regional health care and educational institutions provide the bulk of
employment opportunities and the majority of those workers walk to work. Increasingly,
surface parking lots are transformed into new institutional, educational, commercial and
residential building sites. The “Rapid” transit authority provides 24/7 services that too,
limits the need for wasteful and expensive surface parking. The City Parking Authority,
utilizing sophisticated computer software manages all public and private parking facilities
maximizing and matching all available spaces to that needed by the visitors to the
neighborhood. The neighborhood thrives........




Heartside Study-Tentative Approval Timeline

1. Obtain formal financial
commitment from stakeholders.

Target Date: April 1, 2003

2. Seek approval from Parking
Commission to recommend Walker
Parking Consultants as the preferred
consultant for the Heartside Parking
Study after successful financial
commitments from stakeholders
have been obtained.

Target Date: April 10, 2003

3. Seek approval from the City
Commission of a resolution to enter
into a contract with Walker Parking
Consultants, and to enter into legally
binding Letter of Intent that details
financial commitments from the
stakeholders.

Target Date: April 21, 2003

4. Gather all financial commitment
signatures, Walker Parking
Consultant’s signature, and submit

packet to the Mayor for his signature.

Target Date: May 12, 2003.

5. Distribute signed agreements.

Target Date: May 19, 2003

6. Give Walker the go-ahead to
begin the study.

Target Date: May 19, 2003.

Prepared by: Pam Ritsema March 10, 3002




Item VII

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION
OF DEVOS PLACE LOGO AGREEMENT WITH HANON MCKENDRY,
INC.

Boardmember , supported by Boardmember , moved

the adoption of the following resolution:

WHEREAS, the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "CAA")
contracted with Hanon McKendry, Inc. ("HMI") to create a logo for DeVos Place; and

WHEREAS, the Board of the CAA previously on February 26, 2003, approved a logo
developed and created by HMI (the "DeVos Place Logo"); and

WHEREAS, the CAA and HMI have set forth in a DeVos Place Logo Agreement (the
"Agreement") the rights of ownership and use of the DeVos Place Logo; and

WHEREAS, the CAA Board desires to approve and authorize the Agreement in the form
presented at this meeting.

RESOLVED:

1. That the Agreement is hereby approved and the Chairperson of the CAA is
authorized and directed to sign the Agreement for and on behalf of the CAA.

2. That all resolutions, parts of resolutions, policies or guidelines in conflict
herewith shall be, and the same are hereby, rescinded to the extent of such conflict.

YEAS: Boardmembers

NAYS: Boardmembers

ABSTAIN: Boardmembers

ABSENT: Boardmembers

GRAPIDS 99993-596 137321



RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.

Dated: May 28, 2003

Susan M. Waddell
Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary

CERTIFICATION

I, the duly qualified and acting Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary of the
Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "CAA™), do hereby certify that the
foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the CAA Board at a regular
meeting held on May 28, 2003, and that public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to, and
in compliance with, Act 267 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1976, as amended.

Dated: May 28, 2003

Susan M. Waddell
Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary

GRAPIDS 99993-596 137321



DEVOS PLACE LOGO AGREEMENT

THIS DEVOS PLACE LOGO AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") made and entered
into this ", 2003, by and between the GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY, a Michigan statutory authority created pursuant to
Act 203 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1999 (the "CAA") and HANON MCKENDRY,
INC., a Michigan corporation ("HMI").

RECITALS

A. The CAA contracted with HMI to create a logo for DeVos Place, the newly

renovated, constructed and expanded convention center (including DeVos Hall) owned by the
CAA.

B. Representatives of HMI engaged in a development process with a steering
committee comprised of representatives of the CAA and others to create a logo for DeVos Place.

C. The steering committee recommended a logo for DeVos Place as depicted on the
attached Exhibit A (the "DeVos Place Logo") to the CAA Operations Committee who in turn
recommended the DeVos Place Logo to the CAA Board of Directors who approved the DeVos
Place Logo on February 26, 2003.

D. The CAA and HMI desire to set forth in this Agreement the rights of ownership
and use of the DeVos Place Logo.

NOW, THEREFORE, the CAA and HMI agree as follows:

1. The CAA has sole and exclusive ownership of the DeVos Place Logo and the
exclusive right to use, to grant to others the use of, or sell or otherwise transfer an interest in the
DeVos Place Logo. Such ownership and rights of the CAA shall be perpetual.

2. HMI acknowledges that it has been compensated for its work in the development
and creation of the DeVos Place Logo and that it has no right of ownership or use of the DeVos
Place Logo, including, but not limited to, any right to use, to grant to others the right to use, sell
or otherwise transfer any interest therein. Whatever rights HMI had, has, or may have in the
DeVos Place Logo is hereby irrevocably transferred to the CAA in consideration for the payment
it received for the Logo's development and creation.

3. The CAA may register the DeVos Place Logo as a servicemark or trademark or
undertake any other registration or filing to protect its ownership and use rights.

4. This Agreement shall bind the parties and their respective successors and assigns.

5. This Agreement shall be construed in all respects in accordance with the laws of
the State of Michigan.

GRAPIDS 99993-596 137317



6. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and there are
no other representations, promises or agreements, oral or written, expressed or implied, between
the parties hereto with respect to this Agreement.

7. This Agreement may not be amended, changed, modified, altered, assigned or
terminated without the written consent of both the CAA and HML

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CAA and HMI have caused these presents to be signed
as of the date and year first written above.

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

By:

John H. Logie, Chairman
HANON MCKEND C.
By: // B

William Danhof~

Managing Partner

GRAPIDS 99993-596 137317



EXHIBIT A

DEVOS PLACE LOGO

GRAPIDS 99993-596 137317



VAN ANDEL ARENA® WEEKLY

Item VIII
DATE EVENT EC ROOM TIME FUNCTION
Wed, May 21 | Griffins vs Houston AH Arena 6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey playoff game
Thur, May 22 | Griffins vs Houston MS Arena 6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Possible hockey playoff game
Fri, May 23 Tim McGraw AH Arena 9:00 AM Load-in
2:00 PM Chair set
6:30 PM Doors
8P-9:15P Band’s first set
9:15P-9:35P | Intermission
9:35P-11P Band’s second set
10:30 PM Load-out
Sat, May 24 Matchbox twenty MS Arena 9:00 AM Load-in
1:00 PM Chair set
4:00 PM Sound check
6:00 PM Doors open
7TP-7:25P Maroon 5
7:25P-7:40P | Intermission
7:40P-8:25P | Sugar Ray
8:25P-8:50P | Intermission
8:50P-10:45P | Matchbox 20
10:00 PM Load-out
Sun, May 25 | Rampage AH Arena 2:00 PM Doors
3P-5:30P Playoff football game
Mon, May 26 | Memorial Day Holiday
Tue, May 27 | Available
Wed, May 28 | Available
Thur, May 29 | Available
Fri, May 30 Available
Sat, May 31 Available
Sun, Jun 1 Available
Mon, Jun 2 Available
Tue, Jun 3 Davenport University MS Arena 7:00 PM Commencement Ceremony
Wed, Jun 4 Available
Thur, Jun 5 Quixtar MS Arena 8A-10P Load-in
Fri, Jun 6 Quixtar MS Arena 8A-8P Load-in continued
2:00 PM Chair set
Sat, Jun 7 Quixtar MS Arena 9:00 AM Rehearsals
5:00 PM Doors
7P-10:45P Show
10:30 PM Load-out
Sun, Jun 8§ Available
Mon, Jun 9 Available
Tue, Jun 10 Available
Wed, Jun 11 | Journey/Styx/REO MS Arena 7:00 PM Performance
Thur, Jun 12 | Available
Fri, Jun 13 Available
Sat, Jun 14 Fleetwood Mac AH Arena 8:00 PM Performance
Sun, Jun 15 Available
Mon, Jun 16 | Available
Tue, Jun 17 Available
Wed, Jun 18 | Available
Thur, Jun 19 | Available
Fri, Jun 20 Available
Sat, Jun 21 Available
Sun, Jun 22 Available




GRAND CENTER WEEKLY — YEAR 2003

DATE EVENT ROOM TIME FUNCTION EC OPERATIONS/CONSTRUCTION
TUES. MAY 20 RIVERDANCE - BTG DV,BLY 8A-5P MOVE IN CONTINUED ST AC MOVE OUT OF WH, WA AND OFFICE
7:30P-10P PERFORMANCE
WED. MAY 21 RIVERDANCE - BTG DV,BL/ 7:30P-10P PERFORMANCE ST AC MOVE OUT OF WH, WA AND OFFICE
THURS. MAY 22 RIVERDANCE - BTG DV,BL/ 7:30P-10P PERFORMANCE ST AC MOVE OUT OF WH, WA AND OFFICE
FRI. MAY 23 RIVERDANCE - BTG DV,BL/ 8P-10:30P PERFORMANCE ST AC MOVE OUT OF WH, WA AND OFFICE
SAT. MAY 24 RIVERDANCE - BTG DV,BL/ 2P-4:30P PERFORMANCE ST AC MOVE OUT OF WH, WA AND OFFICE
8P-10:30P PERFORMANCE
SUN. MAY 25 RIVERDANCE - BTG DV,BLY 1P-3:30P PERFORMANCE ST
6P-8:30P PERFORMANCE
8:30P-12:30A MOVE OUT
MON. MAY 26
TUES. MAY 27 GR CVB ANNUAL MEETING WA/ 3:15P CLIENT ARRIVES MF
4P-5P MEETING
WED. MAY 28 MI CREDIT UNION GH/ NOON-5P MOVE IN MF
THURS. MAY 29 MI CREDIT UNION GH, TA-1P VENDOR MOVE IN MF
1P-1:45P VENDOR APPRECIATION
2p-5P EXHIBITS
5P-6:30P GENERAL ATTENDANCE
WA/ NOON-4P MOVE IN/IA CALL
FRI. MAY 30 MI CREDIT UNION WA/ 9A-10:15A MEETING MF
GH/ 3P-5:30P EXHIBITS
5:30P-8P VENDOR MOVE OUT
8p-9p CLIENT MOVE OUT
WA/ 4P-8P REHEARSAL
SAT. MAY 31 MI CREDIT UNION WA/ 9A IA CREW MF
10A-11:30A MEETING
GH/ 6:15P DOORS
7P-10:30P BANQUET
SUN.JUNE 1
MON. JUNE 2 AMWAY CORPORATION GH,EH/ 8A-5P MOVE IN MF
TUES. JUNE 3 AMWAY CORPORATION GH,EH/ 8A-5P MOVE IN MF
WED. JUNE 4 AMWAY CORPORATION GH,EH/ 8A-5P MOVE IN MF
THURS. JUNE 5 AMWAY CORPORATION GH,EH/ 8A-5P MOVE IN MF
FRI. JUNE 6 AMWAY CORPORATION GH,EH/ 8A-6P MOVE IN MF
SAT.JUNE 7 AMWAY CORPORATION GH,EH/ 9A-6P SHOW MF
6P-11P MOVE OUT
SUN. JUNE 8
MON. JUNE 9
TUES. JUNE 10
WED. JUNE 11
THURS. JUNE 12
FRI. JUNE 13 BODY, MIND,SPIRIT EXPO 1/3 GH/ MOVE IN MF
SAT. JUNE 14 BODY, MIND,SPIRIT EXPO 1/3 GH/ SHOW MF
SUN. JUNE 15 BODY, MIND,SPIRIT EXPO 1/3 GH/ SHOW MF
MOVE OUT
MON. JUNE 16
TUES. JUNE 17
WED. JUNE 18 MI FIRE SERVICES EXPO GH/ 8A-8P MOVE IN JE




GRAND CENTER WEEKLY — YEAR 2003

DATE EVENT ROOM TIME FUNCTION EC OPERATIONS/CONSTRUCTION
THURS. JUNE 19 MI FIRE SERVICES EXPO GH/ 8A-10A SET UP JE
NOON-7P EXHIBITS
5P-7P HAPPY HOUR
FRI. JUNE 20 MI FIRE SERVICES EXPO GH/ 10A-6P EXHIBITS JE
SAT. JUNE 21 MI FIRE SERVICES EXPO GH/ 10A-6P EXHIBITS JE
6P-9P MOVE OUT
SUN. JUNE 22
MON. JUNE 23
TUES. JUNE 24
WED. JUNE 25
THURS. JUNE 26 HOWARD AMWAY CONFERENCE GH/ NOON-5P MOVE IN JE
FRI. JUNE 27 HOWARD AMWAY CONFERENCE GH/ 12:30P-3P MEETING JE
7P DOORS
8P-MID GENERAL SESSION
SAT. JUNE 28 HOWARD AMWAY CONFERENCE GH/ 9:30A-10:15A MEETING JE
10:30A-11:15A MEETING
NOON DOORS
12:30P-5P GENERAL SESSION
P DOORS
7:30P-1A GENERAL SESSION
SUN. JUNE 29 HOWARD AMWAY CONFERENCE GH/ 8A-10A WORSHIP SERVICE JE
11:30A DOORS
NOON-4P GENERAL SESSION
4P MOVE OUT

MON. JUNE 30




Scott Atchison

2251 South Saulk Trail #126
Grand Rapids, MI 49506
616-975-9918 NativeGR@aol.com

The Walking Tour of Downtown Grand Rapids &
City/County Directions/Information Booth

05/28/03
Grand Rapids/Kent County Convention and Arena Authority
7:30 AM Meeting - County Building- 300 Monroe Ave. NW

Re: City/County Directions/Information Booth
RECAP & UPDATE

Ask your self: What does Grand Rapids have that no other city has? At the end of this presentation, ask your self the same
question.
Booth - 365 days a year - Information always being updated - “A DAILY PHILOSOPHY”

Location - Northwest corner of Rosa Parks Circles, Infront of McKay Tower

restaurant specials (Daily Menu Matrix - Day and Night DMM), actual copies of the menus so the visitors can see what the
restaurants have to offer with prices $$8, maps both walking and driving, walking tour in various languages (need to update
walking tour to recently learning the Gillette bridge will be closed for 1 and Y; years), activities in the metropolitan area,
Convention information, Taxi-cab stand information, will call for tickets and information packets for arena and convention
happenings again 365 days a year

The middle size city that hardly ever sleep!s

Questions:

Where is a pay-phone? Where is DeVos Hall? What time does the fireworks start? Why are all those people over there?
What is going on at The VanAndel tonight? Where is a good place to eat or get a drink? Where can I buy a disposable
camera? Where can we find some ? Where is Calder Plaza? How do I get to the airport, the IRS building on Front
street & ? What is there to do today? My kids would like to ? How do I get a taxi?

Video Camera to show what visitors and tourists (local residents too) are looking for and at: Now is not the time - only 3-5
minutes allocated

FUNDING

DDA Downtown Development Authority, CAA Convention and Arena Authority , City of Grand Rapids, Kent County (Hotel & Motel Tax -
PA 263 of 1974), CVB Convention and Visitors Bureau and the Chamber of Commerce. $250,000 a year - a 365 day a year
operation

DDA to build the building and pay utilities, others to donate equal amounts to general Directions & Information Booth Fund
(Quarterly Updates and Auditing of books)

I would like to help fill some of the vacant buildings (for lease) with assisting with free exposure.

Weather Beam - “If you are lost and/or need information in Grand Rapids, follow the Weather Beam to
the City/County Directions & Information Booth.”

Non-Political and Non-Partisan “RePubDeCrat” repubdecrat - I am here to help all - college educated, military veteran,
computer literate, historian and ability to speak Spanish

What does Grand Rapids have that no other city has?

Scott Atchison



Scott Atchison
2251 South Saulk Trail #126
Grand Rapids, Ml 49506
616-975-9918 - NativeGR@aol.com
The Walking Tour of Downtown Grand Rapids &

City/County Directions/Information Booth

Grand Rapids/Kent County
5/28/2003 Convention and Arena Authority Members
Board of Directors

Weather Beam Blue - cold weather in view
Weather Beam Red - warmweather ahead
Weather Beam Green - no change for seen




